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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2000 2001 2002
(in millions)

Total Revenues*® $443.0 $505.6 $514.0
Operating Income* $30.6 $(8.8) $28.4
Cash Flow from Operations $(28.8) $39.5 $39.0
Cash and Equivalents $172.9 $156.6 $147.5
Total Assets $961.5 $919.3 $840.4
Stockholders’ Equity $361.2 $319.5 $248.5
Diluted Number of Shares 27.5 25.8 25.8

* Excludes sold properties
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

FOR SIR EDMUND HILLARY andTenzing Norgay, the triumph of Mt. Everest lay as
much in the journey as in reaching the summit. They faced a harsh climate and a skeptical public, and won their
place in history through planning, experience, caution and extraordinary teamwork.

Like those great adventurers, we know the path to the top is rarely the easiest. Still, your company has covered
some impressive terrain over the past year:

* \We achieved strong operating results despite an uncertain environment;

® \We designed an exciting new resort for Lake Charles, Louisiana, using some of the industry’s
top architects and designers;

* \We broke ground on a major expansion of our Belterra property;

¢ \We completed the renovation and re-branding of our Bossier City property;

® \We addressed certain regulatory issues in Indiana and instituted enhanced corporate
and regulatory governance procedures;

* We entered into agreements to sell our surplus land in Inglewood, California, for $58 million;

® \We formed a very capable and largely new corporate management team; and

¢ We moved our corporate headquarters to Las Vegas, Nevada, a logical place for a casino
company to be based.

In business, as in mountaineering, all progress involves risk. While this has been a solid
year for us, the terrorist events of 9/11 have caused the public to cut back on air travel,
watch discretionary spending, and focus on basic values. The travel industry has been hit
hard. Airline travel is down, and airline stocks have plummeted accordingly. So have hotel
stocks. Several large hotel real estate investment trusts have cancelled their dividends, and
even the largest and most diverse hotel operators have issued earnings warnings.

Still, we Americans are a resilient and optimistic people. At Pinnacle, we believe there
are opportunities amid the challenges.

Our stock has fallen along with the market, in spite of our geographic diversity and improved
operations. Most of our customers drive to our casinos. Many live locally. Very few fly to
visit us. Also, regional gaming properties such as ours are generally less affected in an
economic downturn than Las Vegas or Atlantic City. Our teams at each property are working
hard to build on our momentum, regardless of economic outlook.

The stock market may be distracted and confused, but we are not. Three of our five core
properties had improved margins in 2002 versus 2001. Four of our five properties had
revenue increases. Two had large increases in profits, while the other three were consistent
with last year’s performance. Overall, revenues from continuing operations rose slightly to DANIEL R. LEE
$514 million and operating income rose to $28.4 million from an operating loss of $8.8 million. CHAIRMAN/CEO

The results were even better excluding our operations in Argentina. These two small casinos had roughly flat
revenues and income measured in Argentine pesos, but recorded steep declines in dollar-denominated results due
to the devaluation of the peso. Our Argentina operations comprise less than 2% of our assets, but were a
significant drag during 2002 on our year-over-year growth.




While we continued to improve our existing
properties, we also laid the groundwork for
significant growth over the next few years. We
are committed to disciplined investing, targeting
cash-on-cash returns of at least 15% to 20% and
sustainable value creation that will benefit the
company in the longer term. We will not invest
unless an opportunity meets our standards,

as we demonstrated in 2002 when we ended

our discussions to buy the Aladdin Resort &

Casino in Las Vegas.

Being successful means taking intelligent risks

and making decisions based on sound research and
experience. Careful study and debate have led us to Lake
Charles, Louisiana, which we believe will be the site of much Dan Lee - Chairman / CEO

of our growth over the next few years. Lake Charles, with its Steve Capp - Executive VP & CFO
regional population of almost 200,000 is about a two-hour

drive from the 4.5 million people in the Houston metropolitan

area. It is also less than an hour from the approximately

385,000 people in the Beaumont/Port Arthur, Texas area and offers
the closest casinos to Austin and San Antonio, some four hours away.

Our research showed that the existing casinos in the area are highly profitable, but otherwise
unremarkable. The market leader, a large Native American casino, is nearly an hour further
from the key Texas markets than our site. Also, Louisiana law was changed in 2001 to allow
dockside gaming. This has allowed us to design a large, single-level casino surrounded by
the hotel and other amenities. This is common in Las Vegas and has proven to be strongly
preferred by customers. In Lake Charles, however, most of the competition consists of
traditional riverboats with multiple levels, low ceilings and narrow spaces.

To honor our commitments and meet our tight schedules, we enlisted several leading
architects and decorators to design the property. The project, expected to cost $325 million
including pre-opening costs and capitalized interest, will offer approximately 700 guest rooms,
five restaurants, a spa, extensive swimming and sunning areas, comprehensive meeting and
conference facilities, a golf course designed by Tom Fazio and, of course, the region’s

most exciting casino. We expect to break ground in Lake Charles soon and open

the new resort in late 2004.

“Our financial plan
IS to take this company to

new heights of performance
and success”

-Daniel R. Lee, Chairman / CEO
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Cliff Kortman - Sr. VP Construction
& Development

Jack Godfrey - Sr. VP / General Counsel
Wade Hundley - Executive VP & COO

We also plan to help Belterra scale new heights. Our Ohio River Valley property had a remarkable turn-around in
2002, its second full year of operation. Nevertheless, much of the resort is underused. It was designed anticipating
a large day-trip business from the nearby Cincinnati and Louisville metropolitan areas, with some overnight
business. The day-trip business proved to be much less than projected, as Belterra’s superior facilities did

not overcome the geographic advantage held by competitors located closer to these two urban areas.
Belterra’s 308-guest room hotel, however, operated at 90% occupancy in 2001 and 94% occupancy in 2002.
Clearly, people are willing to travel a little farther to our superior property if they are able to stay overnight.

To address this, we are doubling our room base. We can do this without adding costly facilities, such as
parking, restaurants, spas, golf courses or casino space. As a result, we believe this will allow us to earn a
high return on our incremental investment. We will also be adding conference space to support mid-week
overnight business, as well as a swimming pool—a necessary amenity for a luxury resort that was left out of
the original project. We broke ground on our new room tower in February and expect to complete the
expansion in spring of 2004. Both the Belterra expansion and the Lake Charles project will be funded by
our surplus cash, cash flow from operations, proceeds of the Inglewood land sales, and our bank credit
facility, which we plan to augment and extend.

As we push ahead in these uncertain times, we depend more and more on our people. In recent months,
we’ve been fortunate in adding several new executive teammates. Kim Townsend, highly experienced in casino
marketing, with tenure at The Venetian, Mirage Resorts and Trump Hotels, joined us as Vice President of
Marketing. Jack Godfrey, a highly experienced gaming attorney and a past President and a current Trustee

of the International Association of Gaming Attorneys, joined us as General Counsel in August. Steve Capp,

a successful and experienced investment banker from Bear, Stearns and Bank of America, has recently
succeeded Bruce Hinckley as our Chief Financial Officer. Bruce chose to stay in southern California when we
moved our headquarters, but we remain grateful for his dedication and his many contributions to the company.

We also have expanded our board of directors. This includes John Giovenco, a highly respected veteran

of the gaming industry. John is the retired president of Sheraton Hotels and, before that, Hilton Gaming.

He also spent several years in his career as Chief Financial Officer of Hilton Hotels Corporation and now heads
our audit committee. Bonnie Reiss, a leading public-service and media specialist, and Bruce Leslie, an
attorney with extensive gaming-law experience, have also brought their talents to our board. Gary Miller
meanwhile, has stepped down from our board to tend to his outside business interests and obligations.

We thank him for his diligent service and wish him well.

It's been an exciting climb since | joined the company in April 2002 and we’ve only just begun. We've
assembled our team, we’ve roped up and we’re prepared for the bigger climb ahead. Through the efforts of
our 6,000 employees, our communities, our families and our shareholders, Pinnacle strives to live up to its
name. We work hard to merit your confidence and thank you for your continued support.

SINCERELY,

Y/

Daniel R. Lee, Chairman / CEO
April 9, 2003
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“Sii ong motivation is e most important

factor in gel‘l‘lng you to the top” si eimund Hiery

Todd George
Sr. Director of Finance & Administration

Neal Miller
Sr. Director of Food & Beverage and Hotel

Alain Uboldi
Vice President/General Manager
Tom Jones
Corporate Training Manager

Mario Maesano
Director of Casino Marketing

Kevin Kaufman
Sr. Director of Casino Operations
(not pictured)
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B ELTERR A, Pinnacle’s newest property, opened October

2000, bringing with it a new level of luxury to the Midwest gaming
market. This beautiful destination resort features an exciting
casino, upscale restaurants, retail shops, a spa and health

club, and a Las Vegas-style showroom. World-renowned golf

course architect Tom Fazio, designed the surrounding 18-hole

championship golf course, named one of the top five best
new courses in America by GOLF DIGEST. A new $37 million
300-guest room tower is now under construction, scheduled for
completion in spring 2004, doubling the resorts guest room
capacity. With the addition, Belterra will also have more meeting
and conference space than any Southern Indiana casino property.

POTENTIAL
AMENITIES
* More than 11.8 million people within
a 150-mile radius 608 rooms post expansion
¢ $37 million expansion project scheduled 7 food venues

for completion in spring 2004 M sl Tar [Fardte-

e 320-acre site with 90 acres that allows for GlesigEs] @l Eous
further future expansion Spa, Health Club and

. . . Beauty Salon
e Dockside gaming began in August 2002
1,800-seat showroom

* Improved highway access expected in 2004 33,000 square feet of

meeting space post expansion

Heated outdoor swimming
pool post expansion
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CASINO MAGIC BIlILOXI

L O C AT E D on the Gulf Coast in Biloxi, Mississippi,

“It doesn’t seem SO MUCH t cimb amountain
you've been around the foot of a// yOur // f e ”-Roben‘ Frost

Richard Bulot
Director of Hotel Operations

Greg Bosarge
Director of Finance

John Ferrucci
Vice President/General Manager

Kenny Medders
Director of Table Games
Player Development

Manny Corrao
Director of Marketing

:1

AMENITIES

378 hotel rooms
4 restaurants

6,600 square feet
of conference space

Spa and Health Club
1,315 parking spaces
Indoor pool

Centerpiece of
Casino Row

CASINO MAGIC BILOXI is a 16-acre gaming destination. The
first AAA “four-diamond” rated hotel in the Gulf Coast region
and one of few dockside casinos in the country to receive this coveted

award, this exciting resort is ideally located on Biloxi’s “Casino Row,”
within easy driving distance from several major population centers.
CASINO MAGIC attracts guests from New Orleans, Mobile, Pensacola
and Tallahassee, as well as Atlanta and other surrounding areas.
Expansions and renovations are underway to build a new high limit

VIP gaming area and to further beautify the casino entrance.

POTENTIAL

e More than 4.8 million people within :
a 150-mile radius ERILCr)

[
i inati rsmEr @ FaplANABECE @
* Regional Destination Resort ‘ g T ey

* New High Limit Gaming Area and renovated &
casino entrance opening second quarter 2003 i b




BOOMTOWN BOSSIER CITY

THE HOT ACTI O N inBossier City, Louisiana,
is at BOOMTOWN. Voted as having the “Best Slots” in the city two
years running, the casino features three levels of exciting slot and table
play. Opened in October 1996 as CASINO MAGIC, this

destination underwent a $24 million expansion in 2002,

Ty

and was renamed BOOMTOWN. The property now features one of the

region’s most exciting casinos, the new Circle-B Ranch Steakhouse,

Cattlemen’s Buffet, a hot new margarita bar, and a spectacular new marquee

— 16 stories high — along Interstate 20. Bossier/Shreveport is the closest

gaming location to the important Dallas/Ft. Worth market.

Herb Gee
Director of Casino Operations

Maurine Wasloski
Director of Human Resources

Juris Basens
Vice President/General Manager

Kim Coker
Director of Finance

Barry Regula
Assistant General Manager

POTENTIAL

e More than 9.2 million people within
a 200-mile radius

AMENITIES

® Extensively remodeled and re-branded
in 2002 188 hotel rooms

4 restaurants

29,679 square feet
of gaming space

1,863 parking spaces

“. b th e deep ex,oer /ence of the lonely climb on the mountain of
success brings a wealth beyon d ,OO WEr to compute - -Alice Foote MacDougal
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BOOMTOWN NEW ORLEANS

THE O N LY casino located on the West Bank across the
Mississippi River from The Big Easy, BOOMTOWN NEW ORLEANS is a
favorite of the local residents. The property has recently added
more attractions to draw guests, including a new poker room,
a high limit gaming area and additional slot machines. Its friendly
staff and upscale amenities make it the center of

entertainment for the area.

Charles Kates
Slot Operations Director

Rafael Verde
Finance Director

David Williams
Vice President/General Manager

Ben Gravolet
Marketing Director

Joe Giantonio
Table Games Director

POTENTIAL

e Over 4.3 million people within a 150-mile radius

AMENITIES ® 12-acre site for future expansion

e New poker room and additional slot machines
3 restaurants in early 2003

4,700 square feet of
conference space

550-seat
entertainment venue

1,053 parking spaces

J

1 /l’7 the moun ta/nS Of l‘l’ u th y you never climb in vain. . -Friedrich Nietzsche




BOOMTOWN RENO

L O C AT E D on one of the busiest interstate highways in America, 1-80,
BOOMTOWN RENO is driving in the fast lane. Opened in 1964, this
western-themed casino just west of Reno, Nevada, can claim the largest
percentage of dedicated long-term employees in the Pinnacle Entertainment

family. Making guests comfortable and happy has earned

BOOMTOWN RENO high marks, and an average hotel

occupancy rate over 90%. Acknowledged by the community it

serves for excellence, this outstanding operation has earned Reno’s

only Excellence in Gaming Award, as well as a special State of Nevada

Tourism Award for strengthening the tourism product within the state.

Bob Almo
Director of Sales & Marketing

Paige Kramer
Director of Human Resources

Jack Fisher
Vice President/General Manager

David Glavin
Director of Table Games

David Mustard
Director of Finance

POTENTIAL

e Over 4.2 million people within a 150-mile radius AMENITIES

¢ $1 billion expansion to the Port of
Oakland expected to increase traffic on 318 hotel rooms
Interstate-80 significantly

205-space RV park
“"'"' g ke © 504-acre site allows for significant 2 B

% future expansion 4 restaurants

- * Recent annexation by City of Reno 2 large service stations

accommodates development and/or sale of
— surplus acreage
— w e Rapid growth of Reno suburbs is approaching

Boomtown location

5,000 square foot
Mini Mart

Family Fun Center

Truckers’ Annex

R e ]

b2

113
/ f ONE does not climb tall mountains, ONE cannot view the plains.  -Chinese Proverb




CAUSTAL

LARINN BDTLEL
CASINO MAGIC ARGENTINA CALIFORNIA

LAS VEGAS-STYLE GAMIN G with South American P I N N A C L E Entertainment’s CRYSTAL PARK CASINO HOTEL and HOLLYWOOD
flair. That's CASINO MAGIC ARGENTINA. The principal Casino Magic Argentina PARK-CASINO, which are leased to and operated by a third party, are located in the midst of the
facility is in the city of Neuquen, the commercial capital of the Patagonia sprawling Los Angeles metropolitan area, offering California card games and entertainment to the vast
region and home to some 350,000 inhabitants. The casino, with its nightly live audience of potential players nearby. Adjacent to the world-famous Hollywood Park Racetrack, the
entertainment, bingo games, and several hundred slot machines is a popular HOLLYWOOD PARK-CASINO offers a variety of poker games, California games, and popular
center of entertainment with the local population. In San Martin de los Andes, bingo sessions, as well as live and simulcast horse racing. Live entertainment is also part of the
Casino Magic’s second, smaller facility caters to vacationers who hike the exciting atmosphere with comedy clubs, nightclubs, live jazz and concerts available. Its sister
surrounding mountains, fish the areas world-class trout streams or ski nearby property, CRYSTAL PARK CASINO HOTEL, is just 15 minutes away. A 236-room hotel, with
at one of South America’s leading ski resorts. banquet rooms, catering, a restaurant, gift shop, workout room, pool tables and arcade

games complements a variety of poker and California card games.

Hugo Feliziani
Operations Manager,
Casino Magic-Neuquen

Paul Contesse
Vice President & Director,
South American Operations

Federico Castro
General Manager,
Casino Magic Argentina

POTENTIAL AMENITIES AMENITIES POTENTIAL

| ocated in the commercial capital of Patagonia . . * Annual traffic of over 800,000 including casino,
NERECE e (R hotel and group event guests at Crystal Park

oN n is the ener ital of A i 29,000 square feet of 35,000 square feet of ) o .
eugueniisithe energy capital ofl Argentina gaming space gaming space * Annual traffic of over 1.5 million including

Health club casino patrons, simulcast bettors, bingo players

* Exclusive concession for Neuquen 250-seat lounge and group events at Hollywood Park-Casino

. o 2000-seat banquet room
Live music nightly Arcade
24-hour gaming

Crystal Park:

San Martin: 5,000 square feet of
B b Y, gaming space

4,300 square feet , 3 236 hotel rooms

of gaming space i ) Banquet facility

100-seat lounge

“N ever measure tne height of a mountain
until you have I eaCh ed th e f0,0 ”-Dag Hammarskjold



LAKE CHARLES

[OPENING WINTER 2 00 4]

THE NEWEST jewel inthe Pinnacle
Entertainment crown is under development in Lake
Charles, Louisiana. Just two hours from Houston,
Texas, the property will be the ideal destination for the
business or leisure traveler seeking non-stop gaming
action, combined with first-class hospitality and
dining experiences.

-

A

Not yet named, The Lake Charles Property is located
on 227 acres along picturesque Contraband Bayou, a
locale rich in history and folklore. Construction will begin
in spring 2003, with an anticipated opening in the last
quarter of 2004.

A Tom Fazio-designed golf course, first-class spa and exercise facility, variety of upscale
{ dining options, 24-story guest room tower, conference center, the most lavish casino suites East
| Iy . i . “ ol
¥ of Las Vegas, and an exciting single level casino, will make Lake Charles the new “must visit
destination in the heart of the South.

AMENITIES
Tom Fazio-designed 18-hole golf course
Pool and “Lazy River”
Spa, salon and exercise facility
Five restaurants e Retail shops

"{li"l..h::-

Coffee bar, ice cream parlor and arcade
24-story tower with 700 guest rooms
60 table games, over 1550 slot machines
Meeting and Conference Center e Live entertainment
RV parking ® Motorcoach lobby

POTENTIAL
e More than 1.5 million people within a 100-mile radius

® | ocated two hours, 120 miles, from Houston, Texas,
population 4.5 million

H'J.UBT ® Closest gaming destination to Austin and San Antonio

e 227-acre site with an option for an additional 75 acres

“Ol’? Wc’:ll' d an d U,OW&ZI’ d . - -Abraham Lincoln



FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
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ANALYZING 2002 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our EBITDA was $73 million in 2002, up 78% from $41 million in 2001. This is net of “certain items.” The calculation of this EBITDA
and description of those “certain items” are described in notes (f) and (g) on page 23. The events that led to the “certain items” in
2002 and 2001 were principally related to settlement of regulatory issues in Indiana, asset write-offs, relocation costs and other

items that are typically excluded by Wall Street analysts. These are all events that we believe and hope will not recur. Had these
“certain items” not occurred, our EBITDA would have been $85 million vs $64 million, an increase of 32%.

We have three other relevant observations. First, our interest expense is higher than necessary. At December 31, 2002, we had $148
million of cash and equivalents, including restricted funds related to future construction. Of the $148 million, approximately $45 million
is necessary working capital — coins in slot machines and the like. The remainder is surplus cash held to fund future construction of
the Belterra expansion and the Lake Charles project.

Our average cost of debt capital is over 9% per annum. Our surplus funds have been earning of late approximately 1.2%-per annum.
If we did not have these expansion projects on the horizon, we could have — and probably would have — used our surplus cash to
pay down debt, either by purchasing bonds in the open market or by exercising our rights to call those bonds. We chose to retain
the cash and not repay this debt, incurring significant additional interest expense. In our judgment, the long-term benefits of
maintaining this liquidity offset the short-term costs.

We also have agreements to sell our Inglewood land for $58 million. As with our surplus cash, the proceeds are targeted towards
funding our expansion projects. The Inglewood land is principally asphalt parking lots, producing essentially no income. Again, had
we sold the land some time ago and used the proceeds to pay down debt, our net interest expense would have been lower

than it was.

Finally, note that while we have positive cash flow, we produce significant tax losses. Because of differing GAAP and tax depreciation
schedules and other factors, our losses for tax purposes are larger than our losses for book purposes. This company was very
profitable for many years and therefore historically paid taxes. Our recent tax losses have allowed us to look back and recoup some
of the taxes paid in earlier years. Such tax refunds are, in effect, a cost-free source of funds. Our income tax refunds received on a
cash basis net of income taxes paid (including a $4.2 million settlement in 2002 of some old Casino Magic tax issues) were $2.4
million in 2002 and $23.1 million in 2001. The tax losses of 2002 will probably result in additional tax refunds during 2003. On the
other hand, the large taxable gains anticipated on the Inglewood land sales scheduled to close in 2003 plus anticipated continued
improvement in our operating results may put us in a position of having to pay some taxes in 2004.

i TLUE T

FAVORABLE DEBT STRUCTURE

The nature of our capital structure is an important asset of the Company. Almost all of our debt is comprised of two
pari passu bond issues, $350 million of 9.25% bonds and $125 million of 9.5% bonds. Both bond issues mature in
2007 and neither requires sinking fund or other principal payments prior to that time.

Both bond issues are senior subordinated in structure. The 9.5% bonds were issued first, in 1997. The Company
issued the 9.25% bonds in early 1999. The 9.25% issue had a carve-out permitting the Company to have up to $350
million of senior indebtedness. At the time that the 9.25% bonds were issued, the Company paid $6.3 million to the
holders of the 9.5% bonds to amend their covenants to have a similar $350 million carve-out. As a result, the Company
is permitted today to have up to $350 million of senior indebtedness.

That carve-out is very important in the Company’s plans for funding its expansion. It allows us to borrow on much more
favorable terms than we could otherwise. That borrowing capability, plus our surplus cash and anticipated land sales and
cash from operations, should be more than sufficient to fund our Belterra expansion, the Lake Charles project and
maintain the competitiveness of our other properties.
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Dale Dodd - VP Corporate Information Technologies
Kim Townsend - VP Marketing

Jim Barich - Sr. VP Public Affairs

Art Goldberg - Sr. VP Risk Management & Benefits
Chris Plant - VP Corporate Controller & Treasurer

THE PROS AND CONS OF
LEVERAGE

Our company has a significant amount of financial leverage. Our debt
capital is over double our equity capital and our cash flow available to pay
debt service is roughly twice our interest expense. That is higher financial
leverage than many of our competitors. Our leverage will probably rise
further over the next two years, as our expansion projects are anticipated to
be largely funded by debt and the investment of our surplus cash. However,
based on our forecasts for the new projects, we expect that our financial
leverage following the opening of the Lake Charles facility will be less than
it is today. In effect, we intend to grow into a stronger financial position.
Leverage can be a double-edged sword. If our operating results were to deteriorate or the new projects to perform poorly, our
financial leverage would magnify the impact on this to our shareholders. On the other hand, if things continue to go well, our financial
leverage can significantly amplify the returns on our equity investment, benefiting shareholders. Management is very cognizant of the
risks inherent in financial leverage. Such risk is significantly lessened by the diversity of our operations. We operate casinos that are
diverse geographically and diverse by type of business. No one facility is a dominant source of income. We also intend to continue
to manage our maturities, our covenants and our liquidity to reduce the risks of financial leverage as much as possible, while
retaining most of the upside. Think of it as a double-edged sword held carefully.
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THE ADVANTAGES OF BEING SMALL

It's good to be small. We are much smaller than many of our competitors and we view that positively. It is much easier for us to
maintain a growth rate that is higher and more sustainable than it would be for many of our competitors. The Lake Charles project
alone, for example, should help us maintain a high growth rate over at least the next few years. Some of our larger competitors
would need to open a new facility comparable to our Lake Charles project every quarter to maintain a similar growth rate.

Share prices are affected strongly by growth rates and much less so by the size of the company. Over time, the company

with the higher sustained growth rate will often have the better stock price performance.

Recognize that a large corporation is also not necessarily best suited to serve a customer. A customer may be in a hotel

with 3,000 guest rooms, but only sleeps in one hotel room at a time. That same company might have other facilities scattered
throughout the world, but that is not very relevant to someone seeking to have an enjoyable gaming and resort experience close
to home.

A customer does care, however, whether his favorite meal is prepared the way he wants it and whether or not the dealer smiles
and remembers the customer’s name.

The size of our company allows us to provide levels of service that often go unnoticed at larger companies. We are able to
personalize the experience and offer levels of service that exceed customer expectations. We intend to take advantage of

our size and make sure that we excel at the things customers most care about.

Maybe, with time, our success at those little things will cause us to grow to be big. As in many aspects in life, it is the journey
from smallness to bigness that is often the most rewarding.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (the “Company” or “Pinnacle Enter’(ainment”) isa Ieading owner and operator of gaming entertainment facilities. (f) The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before net interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation, amortization, minority interest, cumulative change in accounting principle and
) . ' X X . X X X X extraordinary items. Included in EBITDA are certain items—see Note (g) below. For an additional explanation of matters concerning EBITDA, see “ltem 7 —Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of
These include five properties in the United States, located in southeastern Indiana; Reno, Nevada; Bossier Clty and New Orleans, Financial Condition and Resullts of Operations—Other Supplemental Data”. EBITDA is calculated by adding the provision for income taxes, minority interests, net interest expense, depreciation and
Louisiana; and Biloxi, Mississippi. In addition, the Company operates two casinos in Argentina and receives lease income from two card amortization, cumulative change in accounting principle and extraordinary items to net income (loss). A reconciliation from net income (loss) to EBITDA is as follows:
clubs in Southern California. The Company is also developing a hotel and casino in Lake Charles, Louisiana. The Company’s properties
primarily cater to customers who live within driving distance of the properties. FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
The following selected financial information for the years 1998 through 2002 was derived from the consolidated financial statements of (in thousands)
the Company. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Net (I0SS) INCOME . . .\ oot $ (69,629) $ (28,649) $76,839 $44,047 $13,169
Condition and Results of Operations”, the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto. T T — 56,704 0 0 0 g
Extraordinary item, net of income tax benefit . . ............. 0 0 2,653 0 0
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 (a) 2001 (o) 2000 (0) 1999 (d) 1998 (6) Net (loss) income before cumulative change
in accounting principle and extraordinary item ... ........... (12,925) (28,649) 79,492 44,047 13,169
Statement of Operations Data: Income tax (Denefit) eXPenSe. . . .. oo oo (6,146) (21,906) 52,396 40,926 8,442
(in thousands,except per share data) o
REVENUBS. . .+ oo oo $514,001 $508,043 $549,602 $673,967 $409,449 MR (RS oo eaaacaccaaacacsaassoncanasoosansac e e e ey Ak
Operating iNCOME (I0SS). + .+« « v v v vt eeeeeee e 28,411 (5,723) 171,904 144,204 44,503 (Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting principle,
) o ) ) extraordinary item, income taxes and minority interest . ... .. .. (19,071) (50,555) 131,888 86,660 21,985
(Loss) income before minority interest, income taxes, change in
accounting principle and extraordinary item . ... (19,071) (50,555) 131,888 86,660 21,985 Interest expense, net of capitalized interest and interest income . 47,482 44,832 40,016 57,544 22,518
(Loss) income before change in accounting principle and R
1t 10SS). « oo 28,411 72 171,904 144,204 44,
OXITAOIAINAIY M .+« + + o+ o oo (12,925) (28,649) 79,492 44,047 13,169 ey e (o) 8, (i) 20 g 20s
Net (I0SS) INCOME -+« + o v e e e et e e e (69,629) (28,649) 76,839 44,047 13,169 Depreciation and amortization. . . ............. ... ... ... 44,929 49,450 46,102 51,924 32,121
Net (loss) income per common share: [Z=fUBYN s aabanoanananbonaan 0000000 00000a0a000000000 $73,340 $43,727 $218,006 $196,128 $76,624
BasSIC . . ot $(2.70) $(1.11) $2.92 $1.70 $0.50
Diluted. ... oo (2.70) (1.11) 2.80 1.67 0.50
Other Data:

(9) “Operating income (loss)” and “EBITDA” disclosed above include the following items:

EBITDA (f), (9)

Continuing properties (N) . . . ..o oo ettt $73,340 $40,659 $71,092 $93,303 $38,807
SOld ProPerties. « .« v v 0 3,068 146,914 102,825 37,817 FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
EBITDA (), (Q): -+« e e e eeeeeeee e e $73,340 $43,727 $218,006 $196,128 $76,624

. . (in thousands)
Cash flows provided by (used in):

ASSEt WHLE-OMfS . . . oo $2,753 $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating activities . . . ... ... $39,030 $39,5617 $(28,824) $75,323 $37,224
Regulatory settlement and related costs . . . ................. 6,609 0 0 0 0
IvESing @CHIMIEES . o o o 0o ovaaoocnaoaasoonaooosoonaosnon (76,740) (46,756) 193,277 (51,063) (136,532)
) : o Relocationcosts . ......... ... i 1,601 0 0 0 0
Financing activities . . .. ....... ... 826 (12,442) (114,947) 54,868 119,386
Capital Xpenditures . . . . .« 48,596 52,264 202,775 59,680 54,605 POEEENES RiEES! EO8So oo cc0a0ccoanacso0acoonsconocss & 0 0 0 0
Balance Sheet Data (at December 31): Pre-opening costs, Belterra Casino Resort . ................. 0 610 15,030 3,020 821
Cashandequivalents () . ..........coiiiiiii .. $147,541 $156,639 $172,868 $246,790 $47,413 Terminated merger reserve recovery benefit and costs. . . .. ..... 0 (464) 5,727 0 0
Total @ssets . .. ..o 840,438 919,349 961,475 1,045,408 894,339 Asset impairment Write-down . . . . ... ..o 0 23,530 0 0 0
L) iom MEES [EWEEID oo oo ocooa0ccoconancocooancscs AT HEBiEs 4R ie2 Bilgfee B (&I (Gain) loss on disposition of assets, sold Operations . . . ... .. 0 (500) (118,816) (62,507) 2,201
Stockholders’ equity . . ... ... 248,486 319,516 361,176 280,876 230,976 . . . .
Asset impairment write-down, sold operations . .............. 0 0 0 20,446 0
REIT COStS. .. oot 0 0 0 0 419
(a) 2002 includes costs of $2,753,000 for asset write-offs, $6,609,000 for Indiana regulatory settlement and related costs, $1,601,000 for relocating corporate offices (see Notes 6, 11 and 12,
respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements), and $541,000 for abandoned project costs. In addition, 2002 includes a $56,704,000 charge, net of tax benefit, related to the cumulative 11,504 $23,176 $(98,089) §(39,041) § 3461
change in accounting principle (see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
(b) 2001 includes $23,530,000 of asset impairment charges (see Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), a $500,000 gain on asset disposition, $610,000 of Belterra Casino Resort golf
facility pre-opening costs and $464,000 of terminated merger reserve recovery benefit. (h) Includes the five casinos the Company owns and operates in the United States, the two casinos the Company operates in Argentina, the two card clubs the Company leases to a third party
(c) 2000 includes the financial results of Belterra Casino Resort from its October 2000 opening. 2000 excludes the financial results of the Boomtown Biloxi and Casino Magic Bay St. Louis beginning operator in Los Angeles and corporate expenses.
August 2000 and Turf Paradise beginning June 2000 in connection with the sale of the operations. 2000 includes an $118,816,000 gain on sale of the casino and race track operations, as well as (i) Includes $3,155,000 and $30,100,000 of Restricted Cash-Argentina and Restricted Cash at December 31, 2002, respectively, and $3,452,000 of Restricted Cash-Argentina at December 31,
the sale of excess land (see Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 2000 also includes $15,030,000 of Belterra Casino Resort pre-opening costs and $5,727,000 of terminated merger 2001 (see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

costs (see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(d) 1999 excludes the financial results of the Hollywood Park race track and Hollywood Park-Casino beginning September 1999 in connection with the sale of the operations. 1999 includes a
$62,507,000 gain on sale of the race track and card club casino operations and an asset impairment charge of $20,446,000 related to the write-down of the Hollywood Park-Casino. 1999 also
includes $3,020,000 of Belterra Casino Resort pre-opening costs.

(e) 1998 includes the financial results of Casino Magic Corp. from its October 15, 1998 acquisition date.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources should be read in

. . ) ) T . ) . . ) OPERATING MARGINS (e) 2002 2001 2000
conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto,
as well as the Company’s Form 10K for the year end December 31, 2002 and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Boomtown New Orleans . . . ... oovv vt 20.4% 21.6% 22.1%
Casino Magic Biloxi .. ........ ... ... ... .. L. 12.2% 11.0% 12.2%
|:| RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BOOMIOWN RENO . -+ o oo oo 11.5% 12.6% 12.6%
The following table highlights the Company'’s results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Boomtown Bossier Gity ... ... 5.4% 1.0% 20.9%
For the years ended December 31: Belterra Casino RESOM . . . vt v v vt 2.1% (17.9)% (138.7)%
Casino Magic Argentina ... ............ ... ... ... ... ... 20.7% 27.9% 33.5%
REVENUE (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Card ClUDS. . . o oo 58.0% 41.0% 34.8%
Boomtown New Orleans. . . ...t . $100,403 $99,927 $94,240 SOl PrOPEItIES .+« v oo v e e et 0% 122.9% 132.5%
CasinoMagic Biloxi .. .......... ... .. 86,500 82,997 86,451
Boomtown Reno . .......... ... 89,021 90,100 93,183 (a) The 2001 and 2000 amounts reflect income from agreements with a Native American casino which terminated in June 2001. 2000 includes the Casino Magic Bay St. Louis and
Boomtown Biloxi sold in August and Turf Paradise racetrack sold in June. Operating income for both periods includes gains on the dispositions of the assets.
Boomtown Bossier City . .. ... 102,680 101,019 124,308

(b) 2001 and 2000 includes pre-opening costs of $610,000 and $15,030,000, respectively.
Belterra Casino Resort .. .............. ... . 122,118 104,385 15,506 (c) 2002 includes corporate relocation expenses, Indiana regulatory settlement costs and abandoned project costs totaling $8,751,000. 2001 includes a terminated merger reserve
recovery benefit of $464,000. 2000 includes terminated merger costs of $5,727,000.

Casino Magic Argentina . .. ... ..o 7,039 20,159 22,092
(d) 2002 asset write-offs of $2,753,000 reflect abandoned projects at Casino Magic Biloxi and Boomtown Bossier City. 2001 asset impairment charges of $23,530,000 reflect primarily
Card CIUDS . . v vt 6,240 6,960 7,200 the write-down of the Crystal Park Casino and the original cruising riverboat at Boomtown New Orleans.
514,001 505,547 442,980 (e) Operating margin by property is calculated by dividing operating income (loss) by revenue by location.
Sold properties (@) . . ..o 0 2,496 106,622
COMPARISONS OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
Total revenues . .. ... $514,001 $508,043 $549,602

2002, 2001 AND 2000

Operating Results
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 Operating income increased $37,202,000 to $28,411,000 in 2002 from an operating loss of $8,791,000 in 2001, while revenues
increased to $514,001,000 in 2002 versus $505,547,000, excluding properties sold. Operating income and revenues for 2000,

Boomtown New Orleans. . .. .......c.ovveienineni. $20,470 $21,553 $20,849

Gasino Macic Bilox 10570 0160 051 again excluding sold properties, were $30,580,000 and $442,980,000, respectively. Operating income for 2002, 2001 and 2000
MR IEIBEIE cooowoananoovaasoaonononananasos ' ' ' includes certain unusual costs of $11,504,000, $23,676,000 and $20,757,000, respectively (see note (h) to selected Financial Data

ERSMENNED 0co0acoaacacascaasascacaanansacsaoe pC2ts TR Uil above). When excluding such costs, operating income grew by 177.5% in 2002 versus 2001, and declined by 71.0% in 2001 versus

Boomtown Bossier Gity ... 5,568 987 25,953 2000. Each property’s contribution to these results is as follows:

Belterra Casino Resort (0) .« ..o v 2,616 (18,673) (21,501) . . . .

. , . The Company’s Boomtown New Orleans property continues to produce consistent results. Revenues improved to $100,403,000 in
Casino Magic Argenting . ...« Lt 222 aCS 2002 from $99,927,000 in 2001. A full year benefit of slot machines added in June 2001 and dockside operations that began in April
Card Clubs. . ... 3,622 2,855 2,504 2001 were offset by higher tax rates and unfavorable weather. Operating income declined slightly to $20,470,000 in 2002 compared to
Corporate (C) « oo (23,346) (18,124) (26,864) $21,553,000 for 2001. An increase in state gaming taxes at Boomtown New Orleans from 18.5% to 21.5% that became effective April 1,
Asset write-offs and impairments () ... ................ . (2,753) (28,530) 0 2001 meant a higher tax rate during all of 2002 as compared to only nine months of 2001. Finally, the property incurred higher
................................................ 28,411 8,791) 30,580 depreciation charges in 2002 due to improvements completed throughout 2001.

Sollel BIEEERIES (&) < 2 ococnoaascoooasoacacasosaoaaons 0 3,068 141,324 Also in 2002, the Company sold the property’s original riverboat casino. The boat had remained unused since February 1998, when
Operating iNCOME (I0SS). « .+« « « v v v e et e e e $28,411 $(5,723) $171,904 it was replaced by the current larger and newer facility. Although the boat had been written down for book purposes in prior years, it
still had a large tax basis. The sale generated a book gain of $190,000 and resulted in a tax loss of approximately $14,500,000.
The Company expects to receive a tax refund or credit of approximately $5,200,000 related to the sale of the boat when it completes
REVENUE BY PROPERTY AS % OF TOTAL REVENUE 2002 2001 2000 fts 2002 income tax return.
Revenues and operating income at the property increased in 2001 by 6.0% and 3.4%, respectively, from 2000, as the property benefited
Boomtown New Orleans. . ............................ 19.5% 19.7 % 17.2% K . . i L .
from the 300 slot machines added in June 2001, offset by the increased gaming taxes beginning April 2001.
CasinoMagic Biloxi .. .......... ... ... . 16.8% 16.3% 156.7%
Boomtown Reno. .+ 17.3% 17.7% 17.0% At Casino Magic Biloxi, revenues and operating income improved by 4.2% and 15.3%, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
e 2002 versus the year ended December 31, 2001. This was despite unfavorable weather, notably two hurricanes that closed the Biloxi
Boomtown Bossier City . .............. o oo 20.0% 19.9% 22.6% . . . ) .
property for approximately three days and the New Orleans property for approximately two days. The improvements in operating
Belterra Casino Resort . . ... 23.8% 20.5% 2.8% . . ) . ) .
results are primarily from new casino marketing programs and cost control programs established in late 2001.
CasinoMagic Argentina . .. ... 1.4% 4.0% 4.0%
- . 0.4 - Revenues and operating income declined by 4.0% and 12.8%, respectively, in 2001 compared to 2000, primarily due to increased
"""""""""""""""""""""""""" : : : competition in the market. The year 2000 results also included approximately $800,000 of additional income from the settlement of a
100.0% 99.5% 80.6% ) : o ) ) ) ) )
business interruption insurance claim resulting from Hurricane Georges in September 1998. The closures from the recent hurricane
el EPRNTESe oo oaaccacaanccossanseocsaasconsanac QU 0 o were not long enough to meet the deductibles for business interruption insurance coverage. When excluding the insurance claim in 2000,
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% operating income declined by 5.6%.
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At Boomtown Reno, 2002 gaming revenues were consistent with the prior year, while the overall Reno market was off aimost 4%.
Overall, revenues for the property for the year ended December 31, 2002 declined by 1.2%, principally due to the lower retail fuel prices
at the property’s gas stations. Operating income was down 10.1%, principally due to increased medical insurance costs.

Boomtown Reno’s revenues declined by $3,083,000, or 3.3%, in 2001 versus 2000 primarily due to the adverse impact of the events
of September 11, 2001 on travel along Interstate 80. Fuel prices in 2001 were also lower, affecting revenues from the two gas stations.
The property’s management controlled costs to mirror the reduced drive-by business, and, as a result, the operating margin remained
constant year-over-year.

On July 1, 2002, the Bossier City facility was re-branded “Boomtown Bossier City” from the former Casino Magic brand and motif.
The renovation and expansion work was completed in the middle of the 2002 fourth quarter. Despite construction disruption for a majority
of the year, revenues grew 1.6% to $102,680,000 in 2002 compared to $101,019,000 in 2001. Operating income grew much more
dramatically in 2002 versus 2001, to $5,568,000 from $987,000. Re-branding charges in 2002 of $2,129,000 were offset by reduced
marketing costs and the absence of a $2,600,000 working capital valuation charge that occurred in 2001. Boomtown Bossier City
operating income for the year ended December 31, 2002 also benefited from the absence of approximately $1,602,000 of amortization
of capitalized licensing expenses, related to the implementation of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, which costs were incurred in 2001
and prior.

For 2001, revenues and operating income declined by 18.7% and 96.2%, respectively, versus 2000. Revenue declines were primarily
attributable to increased competition from the opening of a new casino hotel in December 2000 and the opening of a new hotel tower
at another competitor in January 2001. The property also recorded a charge of approximately $2,600,000 for certain reserves and
write-downs related to inventory, accounts receivable and working capital valuation matters.

Belterra Casino Resort proved to be the Company’s biggest gainer in 2002, growing operating income by $21,289,000 on revenue
improvement of $17,733,000. The revenue growth reflects the continued maturation of the property, improved marketing programs and
the benefits of commencing dockside operations on August 1, 2002. For the five months since dockside operations began, gaming
revenues increased 31% period over period, compared to the also strong 16% year-over-year growth in the first seven months of 2002.
In addition to growing revenues the property implemented cost containment measures in late 2001 that helped improve the

operating margin.

Belterra Casino Resort opened in late October 2000. Revenues at this property increased significantly in 2001 due to a full year of
operation, versus approximately two months of operations in 2000. The property incurred operating losses in both periods, although the
losses per day were much less in the full year 2001 than they were in the partial period in 2000. In late 2001, a new general manager
was hired, and steps were taken immediately to improve operations, including improved marketing programs and reduced staffing levels.
The 2001 and 2000 operating losses also include pre-opening expenses of $610,000 and $15,030,000, respectively.

At Casino Magic Argentina, although the turmoil in the Argentine economy that began in late 2001 has continued, operations remain
profitable. For 2002, revenues denominated in pesos increased 10.44% compared to the prior year period. Pesos denominated results
are impacted by the Argentine inflation rate, which has been both high and volatile in recent periods.

Operating results denominated in dollars have declined substantially from the year-earlier periods due to the devaluation of the
Argentine currency. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, currency devaluation caused substantially all of the 65.1%
and 74.1% decline in revenues and operating income, respectively.

Revenues and operating income at Casino Magic Argentina declined by 8.7% and 24.1%, respectively, in 2001 versus 2000, primarily
due to the economic and political instability that began in Argentina in the third quarter of 2001.

Revenues from the Company’s Card Clubs declined in 2002 due to an $80,000 per month reduction in lease income from Crystal Park
Casino, effective October 1, 2001. Operating income in 2002, however, benefited from the reduction of Crystal Park Casino’s
depreciation expense of $1,438,000, as the asset was written down in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Revenues and operating income from “Card clubs” did not change significantly in 2001 from the prior year.

Corporate Costs

When excluding the Indiana settlement charges and relocation costs (see Notes 11 and 12, respectively, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements), corporate costs decreased by $2,988,000, or 16.5%, in 2002 versus 2001, primarily due to reduced costs as a result of
the management restructuring in April 2002 and lower professional service fees related to contracts that expired in 2001. Corporate costs
declined by 32.5% in 2001 as compared to 2000, primarily due to the terminated merger costs incurred in 2000.

Sold Properties

The reduction in revenues and operating income from sold operations in 2002 compared to 2001 reflects the termination in June, 2001
of various lease agreements with a Native American tribe under which the Company derived income from the Legends Casino in Yakima,
Washington. The reduction in revenues and operating income in 2001 versus 2000 reflects the sale of the two casinos in August 2000
and Turf Paradise racetrack June 2000.

Interest Income

Interest income for 2002 decreased by $2,815,000, or 56.1%, from 2001, primarily due to lower interest rates in 2002 versus 2001 and
the early repayment of a promissory note from the Legends casino. Interest income decreased in 2001 versus 2000 by $7,583,000, or
60.2%, primarily due to lower investable funds and lower interest rates.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2002 before capitalized interest was approximately flat to 2001. Interest expense before capitalized interest declined
by $10,434,000 for 2001 compared to 2000, due primarily to the redemption of the Casino Magic 13% Notes in August 2000.
Capitalized interest was $995,000, $481,000 and $8,148,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

The effective tax rate used in 2002 was 32.2%, or a tax benefit of $6,146,000. A portion of the Indiana regulatory settlement costs was
not tax deductible, resulting in a lower tax rate. The effective tax rate in 2001 was 43.3%, or a tax benefit of $21,906,000. The 2001 year
includes a $3,705,000 tax benefit from the settlement of certain federal income tax matters. The effective tax rate in 2000 was 39.7%,

or a tax expense of $52,396,000, which provision includes the taxes associated with the significant asset dispositions in that year. The
Company estimates that its effective income tax rate will be approximately 36% in 2003.

Change in Accounting Principle

The charge in the first quarter of 2002 for the cumulative change in accounting principle of $56,704,000 related to the write-down of
goodwill and other intangible assets. This charge reflected the adoption of SFAS 142 as of January 1, 2002. See Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Extraordinary Loss
The extraordinary loss of $2,653,000 recorded for the year ended December 31, 2000 related to the early redemption of the Casino
Magic 13% Notes.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $147,541,000 of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash of $156,639,000. Management currently estimates that approximately
$45,000,000 is needed to fund the Company’s casino cages, slot machines, operating accounts or otherwise is used in

day-to-day operations.

Included in such cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at December 31, 2002 is restricted cash of $33,255,000. This is comprised
of $22,500,000 set aside for future Lake Charles project construction costs, $5,000,000 in an escrow account to ensure the completion
of a new 300-guestroom tower at Belterra Casino Resort, $2,600,000 for a cash-collateralized letter of credit for self-insurance purposes
and $3,155,000 of funds held in Argentine banks. Included in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at December 31, 2001 is
restricted cash of $3,452,000, all of which was held in the Argentine subsidiary. Cash held in the Argentine subsidiary is considered
restricted by the Company due to the currency restrictions imposed by the Argentine government.

Working capital for the Company (current assets less current liabilities) was $85,119,000 at December 31, 2002, versus $135,170,000 at
December 31, 2001, the decline being primarily attributed to the transfer of cash to the above-noted restricted cash accounts, all of
which (other than the cash in Argentina) are long-term rather than short-term assets (see Note 1 “—Restricted Cash” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements).

For the year ended December 31, 2002, cash generated from operations was $39,030,000, compared to $39,517,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Operating results were substantially improved in 2002 versus 2001; however, due to significant cash tax
refunds in 2001, cash flow from operations was consistent year over year. In 2002, the Company benefited from cash generated from

27



28

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

stock option exercises of $4,067,000 and the collection of a $1,000,000 note receivable. During the year, the Company invested
$48,596,000 in property, plant and equipment and repaid $3,649,000 of debt. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were also reduced
due to the transfer of $29,803,000 of cash to restricted cash as noted above, most of which effectively advances for planned future
construction. The cash invested in current and future construction exceeded the cash generated from operations, resulting in a decline in
cash and cash equivalents of $38,901,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, cash generated from operations and the collection of notes receivable of $39,517,000 and
$8,636,000, respectively, was less than the cash invested in additions to property, plant and equipment, debt reductions and stock
repurchases of $52,264,000, $3,447,000 and $9,820,000, respectively. Therefore, cash and equivalents declined by $19,681,000
for the year.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s debt consists principally of two issues of senior subordinated indebtedness: $350,000,000
principal amount of 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due February 2007, and $125,000,000 principal amount of 9.50% Senior
Subordinated Notes due August 2007. The 9.50% notes became callable at a premium over their face amount on August 1, 2002;

the 9.25% notes became callable at a premium over their face amount on February 15, 2003. Such premiums decline periodically as
the bonds near their respective maturities. Neither series of notes has any required sinking fund or other principal payments prior to
their maturities in 2007. Both series of notes permit the Company to have in the aggregate up to $350,000,000 of senior indebtedness,
none of which is currently outstanding. The Company also has a $2,600,000 stand-by letter of credit outstanding at December 31,
2002, which letter of credit is cash collateralized and for the benefit of the Company’s self-insured workers compensation program.

In March 2003, two major banks agreed to lead syndication efforts to expand the Company’s existing credit facility to $225,000,000 from
the current $110,000,000. The facility would amend and restate the bank credit facility (none of which has been drawn since February
1999) that matures December 2003 to a maturity date of approximately August 2006, which maturity date can be extended under certain
circumstances. The facility would be used to finance the construction and opening of the Lake Charles casino resort, the 300-guestroom
tower at Belterra Casino Resort and other general corporate purposes. Availability under the facility would be significantly limited until the
Company has deposited $40,000,000 of minimum cash proceeds from asset sales or other equity capital raising efforts into a completion
reserve account. The Company expects that the source of these cash proceeds will be the two pending sales (aggregating $58,000,000)
of unimproved land adjacent to the Hollywood Park Race Track. Among the alternatives, the Company could sell some or all of its
surplus land in Reno, St. Louis or elsewhere. Under terms of the proposed credit facility, in the event the $40,000,000 in cash proceeds
is not deposited by March 31, 2004, the unfunded revolving credit commitment would be cancelled and the facility would mature on
June 30, 2004. In addition, the facility will have customary financial covenants and capital spending restrictions, be secured by all assets
of the Company (other than Casino Magic Argentina) and require the Company to demonstrate sufficient liquidity to complete the

Lake Charles project. The Company anticipates finalizing the proposed facility in April 2003. However, the proposed facility is subject to
negotiation and execution of definitive documentation, among other conditions, and there can be no assurance the Company will
complete the land sales in a timely manner or be able to finalize the proposed facility under terms and conditions favorable or acceptable
to the Company.

The Company intends to continue to maintain its current properties in good condition and estimates that this will require maintenance
and miscellaneous capital spending of approximately $20,000,000 to $25,000,000 per year. The Company is also adding a
300-guestroom hotel tower, conference and meeting facilities and a swimming pool area at its Belterra Casino Resort at an estimated
cost of approximately $37,000,000, including capitalized interest. The Company does not expect the pre-opening costs for this project
to be material. Finally, the Company has plans to build a major resort in Lake Charles, Louisiana, estimated to cost approximately
$325,000,000, including capitalized interest and pre-opening costs, of which approximately $3,100,000 had been spent at

December 31, 2002. The Company expects to break ground in the 2003 second quarter and open this resort in the fourth quarter of
2004. However, the Company does not intend, nor is it permitted under its agreement with the Louisiana Gaming Control Board
(“Gaming Control Board”), to begin construction of the Lake Charles facility unless and until it has sufficient resources to complete

the facility.

The Company currently believes that, for at least the next 12 months, its existing cash resources and cash flows from operations will be
sufficient to fund operations, maintain existing properties, make necessary debt service payments and fund construction of the tower at
the Belterra Casino Resort. The Company further believes that the availability under the proposed credit facility and planned asset sales
will be more than sufficient to fund the construction costs anticipated over the next 12 months for the Lake Charles facility.

In October 2002, the Company’s shelf registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission became effective. This permits the
Company to issue up to $500,000,000 of debt, equity or other securities, apart from the credit facility being expanded. There can be
no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to issue any of such securities on terms acceptable to the Company.

The Company’s selection for the fifteenth and final Louisiana riverboat license is conditioned on its continued compliance with certain
conditions designed to ensure that the Lake Charles facility is actually built and successfully opened. In November 2002, the Gaming
Control Board approved the project’s detailed architectural plans. On March 19, 2003, as required, the Company submitted the project
construction contracts to the Gaming Control Board and anticipates the Gaming Control Board will review such contracts at the regularly
scheduled April 2003 meeting. If approved, the Company must demonstrate shortly thereafter that it has the resources to complete the
facility (to consist in part of the amended and restated bank credit facility noted above) and begin construction 30 days after the approval
of the contracts. The Company must then complete the facility within 18 months of the date that it starts construction. Management
intends to continue to meet all of these conditions. There can be no assurance, however, that all conditions will be met. In the event that
the Company does not meet all these conditions, the Gaming Control Board may opt to retract their selection of the Company for the
fifteenth license.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

Management believes EBITDA, which the Company defines as earnings before net interest expense, provision for income taxes,
depreciation, amortization, minority interest, cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, and extraordinary items, to be a relevant
and useful measure to compare operating results among its properties and between accounting periods. EBITDA is not a measure of
financial performance under the promulgations of the accounting profession, known as “generally accepted accounting principles” or
“GAAP.” EBITDA is presented because it is used as a performance measure to analyze the performance of the Company’s business
segments (See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Additionally, management believes some investors consider EBITDA
to be a useful measure in determining a company’s ability to service or incur indebtedness and for estimating a company’s underlying
cash flow from operations before capital costs, taxes and capital expenditures. EBITDA is one of several comparative tools used by
management to assist in the evaluation of operating performance and to measure cash flow generated by ongoing operations. Below is a
reconciliation of operating income (loss), as presented in the “—Results of Operations” table above, to EBITDA. EBITDA is not calculated
in the same manner by all companies and accordingly, may not be an appropriate measure for comparing performance amongst different
companies. EBITDA should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, net income (loss), cash flows from operations or
cash flow data prepared in accordance with GAAP. See Notes (f) and (g) to the “Selected Financial Data” for a reconciliation from net
income (loss) to EBITDA and for details regarding certain costs that are included in this table.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 (in thousands)

Operating Income Depreciation EBITDA
(Loss) and Amortization

Boomtown New Orleans. ... ... $20,470 $6,585 $27,055
Casino Magic Biloxi . . ... ... 10,570 7,520 18,090
[BIOERMIGHIN [RER® 0 00 0onnaoorooanannonoonnonnnnoonno 10,208 7,390 17,598
Boomtown Bossier City . ............ .. i 5,568 7,395 12,963
Belterra CasinoResort . .............................. 2,616 13,176 15,791
Casino Magic Argentina . . .. ...t 1,456 486 1,942
Card ClUbS. . ..o 3,622 2,280 5,902
COrPOrate. . . o vt (23,346) 98 (23,248)
Asset write-offs and impairments. . . . ......... ... ... (2,753) 0 (2,753)
$28,411 $44,929 $73,340
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For the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 (in thousands)

Operating Income Depreciation EBITDA

(Loss) and Amortization
Boomtown New Orleans. . . .. ...ovvnneeeenenn... $21,553 $6,012 $27,565
Casino Magic Biloxi .. ......... . i 9,169 6,799 15,968
BoomtownReno ............. ... ... 11,350 7,834 19,184
Boomtown Bossier City . .. ........ . 987 8,410 9,397
Belterra Casino Resort . .. .. ..o (18,673) 12,898 (5,775)
Casino Magic Argentina . ... ... 5,622 1,447 7,069
Card Clubs. . ... oo 2,855 3,767 6,622
COTPOTALE. .« v e v e e e e et (18,124) 2,283 (15,841)
Asset write-offs and impairments. . .. ... ... oL (23,530) 0 (23,530)
(8,791) 49,450 40,659
Sold properties. . . .. .ot 3,068 0 3,068
$(5,723) $49,450 $43,727

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 (in thousands)

Operating Income Depreciation EBITDA

(Loss) and Amortization
Boomtown New Orleans. .. ... ..., $20,849 $5,843 $26,692
Casino Magic Biloxi . ......... ... ... ... i 10,512 6,963 17,475
[BIO@RMIGII [RERD o o ¢ coaaaoeooooasonnoonoononnnoeoann 11,722 7,683 19,405
Boomtown Bossier City . ... ... 25,953 8,428 34,381
Belterra CasinoResort . .. ........ ... . i (21,501) 2,294 (19,207)
Casino Magic Argentina . . .. ... 7,405 1,573 8,978
CardClubs. . . ... 2,504 3,937 6,441
COMPOTALE. © .+ v e v e e e e e et (26,864) 3,791 (23,073)
30,680 40,512 71,002
Sold properties. . . .. .ot 141,324 5,590 146,914
$171,904 $46,102 $218,006

D CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The following tables summarize our contractual obligations and other commitments as of December 31, 2002:

Contractual Obligations (in thousands) Payments due by period

Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
Debt and capital lease obligations . .. ........... $493,498 $2,419 $4,721 $ 480,275 $6,083
Operating lease obligations . .. ................ 40,211 7,383 10,979 8,649 13,200
Design and development commitments (). . ... ... 10,023 3,805 6,218 — —
Lake Charles contractual obligations (b) . .. ....... 11,400 6,275 5,125 = =

(a) Primarily Lake Charles project.

(b) Infrastructure improvements and other commitments.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

Argentina

During the second half of 2001, the political and economic condition of Argentina deteriorated. In early 2002, the government also
devalued the Argentine peso, which for over ten years previously had been pegged to be equal to the U.S. dollar. At December 31,
2002, the Argentine peso had declined to $0.29 from $1.00 on December 31, 2001.

Although the Company’s Argentine casinos continue to be profitable, such profits denominated in dollars are significantly lower than prior
year results. The Company anticipates the economic instability will continue through 2003. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s assets
in Argentina were $7,102,000, or less than 1% of the Company’s consolidated assets.

Legislation Regarding Dockside Gaming in Louisiana
Effective April 1, 2003, Boomtown Bossier City’s gaming tax rate was increased one percentage point to 21.5% consistent with
legislation enacted in April 2001 for all riverboats in parishes bordering the Red River.

Legislation Regarding Dockside Gaming in Indiana

Effective August 1, 2002, the Company converted its Belterra Casino Resort to dockside operation, which was the first date permitted by
Indiana law enacted on July 1, 2002. Customers generally prefer the convenience of dockside operation because access to the casino is
not tied to a cruising schedule. Such legislation also enacted a new graduated tax structure for dockside riverboats as follows:

* 15% of the first $25,000,000 of Adjusted Gross Receipts (‘AGR”);

® 20% of AGR in excess of $25,000,000, but not exceeding $50,000,000;

® 25% of AGR in excess of $50,000,000, but not exceeding $75,000,000;

® 30% of AGR in excess of $75,000,000, but not exceeding $150,000,000; and,

® 35% of AGR in excess of $150,000,000.

In addition, such legislation set an admission fee of $3 per customer admitted to the dockside riverboat casino, replacing the per person
per cruise fee previously required for cruising riverboat casinos.

Based on the Belterra Casino Resort’s recent operating results, the Company believes that at current revenue levels the graduated tax
structure and the reduced admission fees resulted in an overall tax rate for the property similar to the combined prior tax and admission
fee structure.

Lake Charles

Pursuant to the continuing requirements by the Gaming Control Board, in March 20083, the Company submitted construction contracts
consistent with the detailed plans approved in November 2002. The Gaming Control Board is expected to review those contracts at its
next scheduled meeting. The Company intends to break ground within one month of receiving approval of the contracts and to open the
new resort in late 2004.

In August 2002, the Company exercised its options to lease from the Lake Charles Harbor and Terminal District 227 acres of unimproved
land upon which the proposed project will be constructed. Effectiveness of the lease agreements is subject to the satisfaction of various
conditions, including obtaining all of the necessary permits and approvals to construct the project. The leases call for annual payments of
$835,600, commencing upon opening of the resort complex, with a maximum annual increase thereafter of 5%. Upon effectiveness, the
leases will have initial terms of ten years with six renewal options of ten years each. In addition, the Company entered into a Cooperative
Endeavor Agreement with the City of Lake Charles, Calcasieu Parish and the District requiring the Company to make infrastructure
improvements, including, among other things, a road extension and utility improvements, and pay non-specific impact fees, which,
collectively, are expected to approximate $11,400,000. The Company has included such obligations in the $325 million project budget.
The Company also entered into an option to lease an additional 75 acres of unimproved land adjacent to the 227 acres. The lease option
is for a one-year period, with three one-year renewal options, at a cost of $37,500 per option period. The terms of the lease, if the option
were exercised, would be substantially similar to the terms of the leases for the 227 acres.

Belterra Casino Resort
In February 2003, the Company broke ground on the $37,000,000 Belterra Casino Resort expansion project that will add 300
guestrooms, meeting and conference space and other amenities. The project is expected to be completed in the first half of 2004.
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Assets Held for Sale

In June 2002, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement with a national retail developer for the sale of 60 of the
97 acres of real property it currently owns adjacent to the Hollywood Park Race Track in Inglewood, California. The purchase price is
$36,000,000. The close of escrow is scheduled for the second half of 2003, subject to the developer obtaining the necessary
entitlements to develop the land. In addition, the buyer has the right to extend the close of escrow under certain circumstances.

The Company has also entered into an agreement with a regional home builder for the sale of the remaining 37 acres for $22,200,000.
The close of escrow is scheduled for the second half of 2003, again subject to the developer obtaining the necessary entitlements to
develop the land.

Contingencies

The Company assesses its exposures to loss contingencies including legal and income tax matters and provides for an exposure if it is
judged to be probable and estimable. If the actual loss from a contingency differs from management’s estimate, operating results could
be impacted.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Certain of the accounting policies require management to apply significant judgment in defining the estimates and assumptions for
calculating financial estimates. These judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Management’s judgments are based
on the Company'’s historical experience, terms of various past and present agreements and contracts, industry trends, and information
available from other sources, as appropriate. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those estimates.
Changes in these estimates could adversely impact the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

The Company has determined that the following accounting policies and related estimates are critical to the preparation of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements:

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has a significant investment in long-lived property, plant and equipment, which represents approximately 70% of the
Company’s total assets. Judgments are made in determining the estimated useful lives of assets, the salvage values to be assigned to
assets and if or when an asset has been impaired. The accuracy of these estimates affects the amount of depreciation expense
recognized in the financial results and whether to record a gain or loss on disposition of an asset. The Company reviews the carrying
value of its property, plant and equipment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition.

Self-insurance Reserves

The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with general liability, workers’ compensation and employee
medical coverage. Insurance claims and reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for claims. In estimating these accruals,
the Company considers historical loss experience, makes judgments about the expected levels of cost per claim and relies on
independent consultants.

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

The Company utilizes estimates related to cash flow projections for the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
109 to the realization of deferred income tax assets. The estimates are based upon recent operating results and budgets for future
operating results. The determination of deferred income tax liabilities includes management’s judgments of expected settlements of
audits by various tax authorities and the realization of tax deductions and credits expected to be realized in the future.

Asset Disposition Reserves

The Company had remaining asset disposition reserves of $4,049,000 at December 31, 2002 related to the sale of casino and race track
assets in 1999 and 2000. The initial reserves were established for self-insured liabilities, tax matters and other pre-asset sale exposures.
Management evaluates the reserve regularly based on estimates provided by independent consultants and historical experience.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In January 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” which requires an annual review of
goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets for impairment (see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

The annual evaluation of goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets requires the use of estimates, including recent and
future operating results, discount rates, risk premiums and terminal values, to determine the estimated fair values of the
Company’s reporting units and gaming licenses.

D RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Recently issued accounting standards adopted by the Company in 2002 are in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The following recently issued accounting standards will be implemented in future periods.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (“SFAS No. 143”)

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”.
SFAS No. 143 establishes accounting standards for the recognition and measurement of an asset retirement obligation and its associated
asset retirement costs. It also provides accounting guidance for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets. SFAS No. 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company does not
believe that the impact of SFAS No. 143 on its financial position and results of operations will be material.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS No. 145”)

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No.
13, and Technical Corrections”. The most significant provisions of this statement relate to the rescission of Statement No. 4, “Reporting
Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt”. Under this new statement, any gain or loss on extinguishment of debt that was classi-
fied as an extraordinary item in prior periods that does not meet certain defined criteria must be reclassified as non-extraordinary. The
Company adopted this statement on January 1, 2003. The Company had no such extraordinary items in 2001 and 2002.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS No. 146”)

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting

for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with
exit or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when
the liability is incurred. An entity’s commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create a liability. The provisions of this statement are required
for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not believe that the impact of SFAS No. 146
on its financial position and results of operations will be material.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”)

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 addresses
consolidation by business enterprises where equity investors do not bear the residual economic risks and rewards. These entities have
been commonly referred to as “special purpose entities.” The Company does not have any such “special purpose entities and therefore
the adoption of FIN 46 will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

Except for the historical information contained herein, the matters addressed in this Annual Report may constitute

“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Words such as, but not limited to, “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “estimates”,
“intends”, “plans”, “could”, “may”, “should” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking statements, which may include, without limitation, statements regarding expansion plans, cash needs, cash reserves, liquidity,
operating and capital expenses, financing options, expense reductions, operating results and pending regulatory matters, are subject to
a variety of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by the Company. From time
to time, oral or written forward-looking statements are also included in Pinnacle Entertainment’s periodic reports on Forms 10-Q

and 8-K, press releases and other materials released to the public.

Actual results may differ materially from those that might be anticipated from forward-looking statements. This can occur as a result of
inaccurate assumptions or as a consequence of known or unknown risks and uncertainties. The Company undertakes no obligation to
publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Factors that may
cause actual performance of the Company to differ materially from that contemplated by such forward-looking statements include,
among others:

e any failure to comply with the conditions negotiated with the Louisiana Gaming Control Board for the Company’s casino
development project in Lake Charles, Louisiana, and its ability to complete the project on time and on budget;

e development of the Lake Charles project, expansion of the Belterra Resort Casino and other capital intensive projects could
strain financial resources and might not provide for a sufficient return;

e many factors, some of which are beyond the Company’s control, could prevent the Company from completing its construction
and development projects within budget and on time, including:
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(i) shortages of materials, including slot machines or other gaming equipment;

(i) shortages of skilled labor or work stoppages;

(i) unforeseen construction scheduling, engineering, environmental, geological or archaeological problems;
(iv) weather interference, floods, fires or other casualty losses;

(V) unanticipated cost increases, or incorrect cost estimates; and

(vi) the availability of sufficient funds under the Company’s credit facilities which is dependent upon satisfaction of covenants
and conditions.

e the effectiveness of the planned new hotel tower and other expansion plans at the Belterra Casino Resort in enhancing Belterra
Casino Resort’s status as a regional resort property and in increasing utilization of its casino and other facilities;

e additional costs in connection with the settlement of the Indiana Gaming Commission investigation, including a failure to complete
on a timely basis the new 300-guestroom tower at Belterra Casino Resort;

e changes in gaming laws and regulations, including the expansion of legalized casino gaming in jurisdictions in which the Company
operates or in nearby jurisdictions;

e the effectiveness of the renovation and re-branding project completed in 2002 at Boomtown Bossier City in drawing additional
customers to the property despite significant competition in the local market;

e failure to complete the sale of excess land in Inglewood, California on a timely basis, which could affect the Company’s ability to
access funds under its proposed new bank credit facility;

e the effect of current and future weather conditions and other natural events affecting the Company’s key markets;

e any failure to complete the proposed bank credit facility, which facility would include financing for the Lake Charles project
(see Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements);

e concentration of suppliers in the slot machine manufacturing industry, which poses significant risk of higher prices and could result
in increased costs to the Company;

e the impact of fuel and transportation costs on the willingness of customers to travel to the Company’s casino properties;

e any failure to obtain or retain gaming licenses or regulatory approvals, or the limitation, conditioning, suspension
or revocation of any existing gaming license;

e risks associated with the Company’s substantial indebtedness, leverage and debt service;
e |oss or retirement of key executives;
e risks related to pending litigation and the possibility of future litigation against the Company or the gaming industry in general;

e significant competition facing the Company in all of its markets, including from casino operators who have more resources
and have built or are building competitive casino properties;

e increases in existing, or imposition of new, taxes or fees;

e adverse changes in the public perception and acceptance of gaming and the gaming industry;

e pursuit of strategic expansions or acquisitions that could have an adverse impact on its business if unsuccessful; and,
e other adverse changes in the gaming markets in which the Company operates.

In addition, these statements could be affected by general domestic and international economic and political conditions, including
terrorism or war, slowdowns in the economy, uncertainty as to the future direction of the economy and vulnerability of the economy to
domestic or international incidents, as well as market conditions in the Company’s industry.

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) provides certain “safe harbor” provisions for forward-looking statements.
All forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report are made pursuant to the Act. For more information on the potential factors

that could affect the Company’s operating results and financial condition, see “— Factors Affecting Future Operating Results” above
and review the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year end December 31, 2002 and other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company'’s primary exposures to market risk (or the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) are with respect to the foreign currency exchange rate with Argentina due to the
devaluation of the Argentine Peso in January 2002. Total assets of Casino Magic Argentina at December 31, 2002 were $7,102,000,
or less than 1% of consolidated assets of the Company.

The Company also has potential interest rate risk associated with the short-term floating interest rate on borrowings under the Credit
Facility and the proposed credit facility (see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). At December 31, 2002, the Company
had no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility, but anticipates using the proposed credit facility to fund construction of its
Lake Charles project.

The table below provides the principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by contractual maturity dates for the
Company’s debt obligations. The Company did not hold any investments in market risk sensitive instruments of the type described in
ltem 305 of Regulation S-K.

LIABILITIES (in thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total Fair Value
9.25% Note ..................... $0 $0 $0 $0 $350,000 $0 $350,000 $311,500
Fixedrate . ...................... 0% 0% 0% 0% 9.25% 0% 9.25%
95%Notes. . ... 0 0 0 0 125,000 0 125,000 111,875
Fixedrate .. ..., 0% 0% 0% 0% 9.5% 0% 9.5%
AlOther(@). ............cooonn.. 2,419 2,339 2,382 2,664 2,711 6,083 18,498 18,498
Avg.interestrate. . ................ 5.8% 5.57% 5.59% 5.59% 5.59% 5.77% 5.66%

(@) Primarily the Hollywood Park-Casino capitalized lease obligation of $16.9 million with a fixed rate of 5.53%.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.: For the years ended December 31, (in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., (a Delaware corporation, IRevemyE:
formerly Hollywood Park, Inc.) and subsidiaries (the “Company”), as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related Gaming ... $432,343 $421,491 $448,378
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Foodand beverage. ...ttt 24781 30,952 31,920
December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is Truck stop and service Station . ... ... 19,720 20,190 21,782
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. IFIOHE] ET7e | (ESREHONE] VEIED PE o co 00000000000 000000scco0000000000s [Ses AR 12,730
Other INCOME .+« .+ v v e et e e e e e e e e e 17,464 20,433 25,340
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those Racing Q 8 e
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements — p——— 549’602
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and ’ ' '
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant Expenses:
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits GAMING © .+ e e et e 252,551 238,975 244,823
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. FOOO ANG DEVEIAGE . -+« + v v et e et e et e e 34,034 38,799 35,180
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial el SilEp EE) SERMED SEWOM 0 0 0 0 00 oo ccccoooo0co00cocaoscscconnns il 7108 20800
position of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their Hotel and recreational vehicle park. . ... 9,095 10,169 6,663
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with RACING . ... 0 0 4133
accounting principles genera“y accepted in the United States of America. Selling, general and administrative . . .. ....... ... . 106,611 120,335 107,978
. ) . ) . ) ) ) Depreciation and amortization . . .. .. ... 44,929 49,450 46,102
As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Pinnacle Entertainment Inc. changed its method of Other Operating EXDENSES - -+ - 0.253 14,450 10,578
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Standards No. 142, “Goodwill ) o )
] ) ) . ) o ) . Asset write-offs and impairment write-downs . . .. ... ... 2,753 23,530 0
and Other Intangible Assets,” in 2002 and recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first ,
Indiana regulatory settlement and related costs. . . . ........ .. .. L. 6,609 0 0
quarter of 2002. ) o
Corporate relocation and reorganizationcosts . .......................... 1,601 0 0
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP Gain on disposition Of @SSEtS . . . . ..ttt 0 (500) (118,816)
Pre-opening costs, Belterra Casino Resort . . .. ... 0 610 15,030
Las Vegas, Nevada penng
Terminated merger reserve recoveries and COSts. . . ... ... 0 (464) 5,727
February 21, 2003, except as to Note 18, 485,590 513,766 377,698
as to which the date is March 19, 2003
Operating income (I0SS) . . . . ...t i 28,411 (5,723) 171,904
INtEreSt INCOME . .+« .« o ot (2,206) (5,021) (12,604)
Interest eXpense, Net. . . . . ... 49,688 49,853 52,620
(Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting principle,
extraordinary item and income taxes . .. ......... .. (19,071) (50,555) 131,888
Income tax (benefit) expense . . ... ... (6,146) (21,906) 52,396
(Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting principle
and extraordinary iteM. . . . .. ... (12,925) (28,649) 79,492
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
net of income tax benefit. . . . ... ... .. 56,704 0 0
Extraordinary item, net of income tax benefit .. ......... ... ... . ... ... ... 0 0 2,653
Net (I0SS) INCOME . . . . . oottt e $(69,629) $(28,649) $76,839
Net (loss) income per common share—basic . .. ........................
(Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting principle
and extraordinary item, net of incometaxes . . .. ... . i $(0.50) $(1.11) $3.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
Net of INCOME taX . . .. ot (2.20) 0.00 0.00
Extraordinary item, net of income tax benefit .. ......... ... .. .. . L. (0.00) 0.00 (0.10)
Net (loss) income per common share—basic . . ... .......vveiueeennn. . $(2.70) $(1.11) $2.92
Net (loss) income per common share —diluted
(Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting principle
and extraordinary item, net of incometaxes . . . ... $(0.50) $(1.11) $2.90
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
net ofincome tax benefit. . . . ... . .. . (2.20) 0.00 0.00
Extraordinary item, net of income tax benefit .. ......... ... ... . ... ... ... (0.00) 0.00 (0.10)
Net (loss) income per common share—diluted . ... ......... ... ... ....... $(2.70) $(1.11) $2.80
Number of shares—basic . ....... ... ... .. . . 25,773 25,814 26,335

NIl 87 @1 Sl ES=CIMEE] o 000 roonnaooonosaonnonnoconnaaooonoana 25,773 25,814 27,456
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

INC.

ASSETS
December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ......... ittt $114,286 $153,187
Restricted cash—Argentina . . . ... ... 165 3,452
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,364 and $2,365
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively . . .. ..................... 9,857 9,194
Incometaxreceivable .. ........ .. ... ... ... 6,364 10,587
[ERIEHES 6 00o0000000000000000000a00060000000000000000a0a00000aA0 5,320 4,264
Prepaid expenses and other assets . .. ... 16,314 14,143
Deferred income taxes. . .. ... 5,549 4,712
Assetsheldforsale. ........... ... ... . ... ... . ... .. 12,160 18,285
Current portion of notes receivable. . ... ... 0 1,000
Total CUIMENt @SSELS . . o v v ot 173,005 218,824
Restricted cash .. ... ... . 30,100 0
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . ... ... 586,083 576,299
Creeeiilll, Mt ©ff EMSRHZEMSIM. o o 0 0 0 0 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000 19,558 68,727
Gaming licenses, net of amortization. . .. ......... .. 21,944 36,588
Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. . ........... ... ... o oL 8,679 12,334
(CliNErEREEE) nobn0b00000000000000000000000600000000060000056A000A00000AA0 1,069 6,577
$840,438 $919,349
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
December 31, (in thousands, except share data) 2002 2001
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE . .« . ottt et e e e $15,615 $16,953
(AU [MIEES 0 00 00o00nb000aa0000aa000000000000000000000a00000a0 I7,128) 17,428
Accrued COmMPENSAtioN . . . .. oottt 17,208 13,737
Other accrued liabilities ... .......... ... .. 35,515 31,887
Current portion of notes payable . .. .......... ... 2,419 3,654
o] @it ElSiES: o 0 0 connoaoonooaaononnooonnnonascannaonoooaan 87,886 83,654
Notes payable, less current maturities . . . . ... ... 491,079 498,493
Deferred income taxes . .. ... ... ... 12,987 22,686
Stockholders’ Equity:
Capital stock—
Preferred—$1.00 par value, authorized 250,000 shares; none
issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2000 . . . .. ... .ot 0 0
Common—3$0.10 par value, authorized 40,000,000 shares; 25,934,261 and
25,448,444 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2001 . . .. ............ 2,615 2,545
Capital in eXcess Of Par VAU . . . . . o v vt ot 224,195 219,613
Accumulated other comprehensive l0ss. . . .. .. .. ... (10,483) (4,430)
Retained €arnings . . . . . .o ot 32,159 101,788
Total stockholders’ equity. . . . ... 248,486 319,516
$ 840,438 $919,349

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT,

INC.

CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands)
Common Capital in Accumulated Retained Total
Stock Excess of Other Earnings Stockholders’
ParValue Comprehensive Equity
Loss

Balance as of January 1, 2000. . ........ $2,624 $224,654 $0 $53,598 $280,876
Net income, comprehensive income. . . . . . 0 0 0 76,839 76,839
Executive stock option compensation.. . . . . 0 414 0 0 414
Common stock options exercised. . . . .. .. 20 2,302 0 0 2,322
Tax benefit associated with
exercised common stock options . . ... ... 0 725 0 0 725
Balance as of December 31,2000 . ... ... 2,644 228,095 0 130,437 361,176
NEEIOSS. « .o eee oo e 0 0 0 (28,649) (28,649)
Foreign currency translation loss. . .. .. ... 0 0 (4,430) 0 (4,430)
Comprehensive [0SS. . . . ... oo (33,079)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (110) (9,710) 0 0 (9,820)
Executive stock option compensation.. . . . . 0 414 0 0 414
Common stock options exercised. . .. .. .. 11 469 0 0 480
Tax benefit associated with exercised
common stock options . ... ... ... 0 345 0 0 345
Balance as of December 31, 2001 . ... ... 2,545 219,613 (4,430) 101,788 319,516
Netloss. .......................... 0 0 0 (69,629) (69,629)
Foreign currency translation loss. . . ... ... 0 0 (6,053) 0 (6,053)
Comprehensive [0SS. . . ..o (75,682)
Executive stock option compensation. . . . . 0 177 0 0 177
Common stock options exercised. . . . .. .. 70 3,997 0 0 4,067
Tax benefit associated with exercised
common stock options . ... ... ... 0 408 0 0 408
Balance as of December 31,2002 . . . . ... $2,615 $224,195 $(10,483) $32,159 $248,486
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40

Cash flows from operating activities:

General

Net (1088) INCOME -+« + v+ v e e e $(69,629) $(28,649) $76,839 Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. (the “Company” or “Pinnacle Entertainment”) owns and operates gaming entertainment facilities in several
P ) ) ) gaming markets. These include five properties in the United States, located in southeastern Indiana (“Belterra Casino Resort”); Reno,
justments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities: . . . ........... . ... Nevada (“Boomtown Reno”); Bossier City and New Orleans, Louisiana (“Boomtown Bossier City” and “Boomtown New Orleans”,
Depreciationiandlamortizaionti i 44,929 49,450 46,102 respectively); and Biloxi, Mississippi (“Casino Magic Biloxi”). In addition, the Company operates two casinos in Argentina (“Casino Magic
) _ ) o Argentina”) and receives lease income from two card clubs and owns 97 acres of vacant land in southern California. The Company is
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, . . . o
net of income tax benefit . . . . . oo 56,704 0 0 also developing a hotel and casino resort in Lake Charles, Louisiana.
Write-off of unamortized premium and debt costs The Belterra Casino Resort is near Cincinnati, Ohio and Louisville, Kentucky. The twin cities of Shreveport/Bossier City offer the most
associated with 13% Notes, net. . .................. 0 0 (3,340) . . . . . -
convenient casinos to the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area. The Lake Charles region offers the closest casinos to the cities of
Gain on disposition of assets . . .. ... 0 (500) (118,816) Houston, Austin and San Antonio.
Asset write-offs and impairment write-downs .. ........ 2,753 283,530 0 i i
Basis of Presentation
Oty @nEmgEs et (U528 PRULES @28iBa s oo caccosaa: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries and have
Receivables, net . ... (663) 6,991 (2,017) been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
Income tax receivable . . . ... ... 4,223 (10,587) 0 America (“GAAP”) and with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The consolidated financial
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . . .. ... .. .. 8,227) (2,495) (7,168) statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Entertainment and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions
ACCOUNS PaYabIe . -+« o oo oo (1,338) (2,396) (1,747) have been eliminated.
Accrued liabilities . ... ... 7,099 (10,339) (8,351) Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs
PGEREE IETESE « & oo e (294) (574) (8,083) Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with long-term debt and bank financing are capitalized and amortized, based on the
straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method, to interest expense during the period the debt or loan commitments
Incometaxes ............ ... (6,297) 14,556 (6,271) . o ) ) o
are outstanding. Amortization of debt issuance costs included in interest expense was $3,862,000, $3,742,000 and $3,062,000 for the
AlOHBGNBE. ... 4,770 930 4,028 years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 was
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . 39,030 39,5617 (28,824) $15,334,000 and $11,472,000 respectively.
Cash flows from investing activities: . .
Gaming Revenues and Promotional Allowances
RSB @ o000000000000000000000000000000¢ (EeyEey (a2 & Gaming revenues consist of the difference between gaming wins and losses. Revenues in the accompanying statements of operations
Additions to property, plant and equipment............ (48,596) (62,264) (202,775) exclude the retail value of food and beverage, hotel rooms, admission to riverboats and other items provided to patrons on a
Receipts from dispositions of property, plant and equipment 659 324 266,925 complimentary basis. The estimated cost of providing these promotional allowances (which is included in gaming expenses) was
Principal collected on notes receivable . .. ............ 1,000 8,636 5,699 $36,623,000, $50,216,000 and $45,713,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Proceeds from short term investments . .............. 0 0 123,428 Shelf Registration
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . (76,740) (46,756) 193,277 The Company'’s shelf registration statement, which had originally been filed in June 2002 with the Securities and Exchange Commission
Gash flows from financing activities: and became effective in October 2002, permits the issuance of up to $500,000,000 of debt, equity or other securities. There can be no
) ) , assurance, however, that the Company will be able to issue any of such securities on terms acceptable to the Company. At December
Redemption of Casino Magic 13% Notes .. ........... 0 0 (112,875) . . . . o
31, 2002 costs totaling approximately $1,200,000 related to the shelf registration statement had been capitalized.
Payment of notes payable ... ........... ... .. ... (3,649) (3,447) (5,119)
Common stock options exercised. . . .. .............. 4,067 480 2,302 Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
Common stock repurchase and retirement . ... ........ 0 (9,820) 0 . . . . L 5 ’
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, (i) the disclosure
Cilnzr iz ESHATES, ME o 0000 o000c000000000000 40 S8 e of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and (i) the reported amounts of revenues and
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . ... 826 (12,442) (114,947) expenses during the reporting period. Estimates used by the Company include, among other things, (i) the evaluation of the
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash. ................. (2,017) 0 0 non-impairment of property, plant, equipment and other long-term assets, (i) the evaluation of the future realization of deferred tax assets,
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents. . . . ... .. ... (38,901) (19,681) 49506 (i) the adequacy of reserves associated with asset sales and the Indiana regulatory settlement, and in determining litigation reserves and other
Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . . . . . . . 153,187 172,868 123,362 obligations, and (i) the valuation of funds held in Argentine banks. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year. . .. ........ $114,286 $153,187 $172,868 Cash and Cash Equivalents
SuppismiEi) Cash Faw IamEien Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.
Cash paid during the year for: Restricted Cash—Argentina
IVEEIESE « v v e e e e $46,366 $46,712 $56,248 Restricted cash—Argentina at December 31, 2002 and 2001 consists of the cash of Casino Magic Argentina maintained in Argentina,
Income taxes (received) paid, Met . .. .+ ..+ ... (2,370) (23.089) 64.600 translated from the Argentine peso to the U.S. dollar. Argentina experienced political and economic disruption in the latter part of 2001,
including the devaluation of its currency and the governmental restriction of transferring funds out of the country. As of December 31,
Non-cash currency translation rate adjustment ... ...... 6,053 4,430 0

2002, the restriction of transferring funds out of the country remained in effect. Therefore, cash of Casino Magic Argentina maintained in
Argentina is classified as Restricted Cash—Argentina on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In the first quarter of 2003, some but not all of
the government restrictions of transferring cash out of the country began to be lifted by the Argentine government. All assets, including
cash, have been translated to U.S. dollars from the Argentine peso.
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Restricted Cash

The long-term restricted cash of $30,100,000 at December 31, 2002 earns interest and consists of a $22,500,000 refundable
investment account that was established as a requirement by the Louisiana Gaming Control Board for the Lake Charles construction
project and will be released back to the Company once construction commences (see Note 5); a $5,000,000 escrow with the Indiana
Gaming Commission as a requirement for the completion of the Belterra Casino Resort’s 300-guestroom tower expansion (see Note 11);
and a $2,600,000 letter of credit for a workers’ compensation insurance deposit.

Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of food, beverage and operating supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Costs are
determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Additions to property, plant and equipment and construction-in-progress are recorded at cost, including capitalized interest. Depreciation
and amortization are provided based on the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Land improvements 5to 40
Buildings and improvements 10 to 39
Vessels and barges 2510 31
Equipment 3to 10

Maintenance, repairs and assets purchased below $2,500 (or a group of like-type assets purchased below $5,000) are charged to
expense, and betterments are capitalized. The costs of property sold or otherwise disposed of and their associated accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from both the property and accumulated depreciation accounts.

Capitalization of Interest

The Company capitalizes interest expense on construction in progress based on an imputed interest rate estimating the Company’s
average cost of borrowed funds. Capitalized interest is based on project costs at an imputed rate and was $995,000, $481,000 and
$8,148,000 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Such capitalized interest becomes part of the cost of the related asset and is
depreciated over its estimated useful life.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes
(“SFAS No. 109”), whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Under SFAS No. 109, the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that included the enactment date.

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income (“SFAS No. 130”) requires that a company
disclose other comprehensive income (loss) and the components of such income (loss). The objective of SFAS No. 130 is to report a
measure of all changes in equity other than transactions with stockholders, such as the issuance or repurchase of shares.
“Comprehensive income (loss)” is the sum of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (l0ss).

The Company’s only such item was the foreign currency translation adjustments reported in the accompanying financial statements.
Therefore, comprehensive income (loss) was computed as follows:

For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Net (I0SS) INCOME .+ . o vttt ettt $(69,629) $(28,649) $76,839
Foreign currency translation loss . ... .................... (6,053) (4,430) 0
Comprehensive (I0SS) INCOME . .. v v v v e e $(75,682) $(33,079) $76,839

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are based on net income less preferred stock dividend requirements divided by the weighted average common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share assume exercise of in-the-money stock options (those options with
exercise prices at or below weighted average market price for the periods presented) outstanding at the beginning of the year or at the
date of the issuance, unless the assumed exercises are antidilutive.

The effect of stock options outstanding was not included in the diluted calculations for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 as
the Company incurred a net loss for those periods. The number of potentially dilutive options was 157,700 and 104,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. A reconciliation of income and shares for basic and diluted earnings per share
(“EPS”) for the year ended December 31, 2000 is as follows:

Per Share
(In thousands, except per share data) Income Shares Amount
Basic EPS—Net income available to common stockholders . . . . $76,839 26,335 $2.92
Effect of dilutive securites—Options . .................... 0 1,121 (0.12)
Diluted EPS—Net income available to common
stockholders plus assumed conversions . .. ............... $76,839 27,456 $2.80

Accounting for Customer “Cash-back” Loyalty Programs

In 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached consensus on accounting for “Points” and Certain Other Time-Based Sales
Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to Be Delivered in the Future. This EITF pronouncement requires that the cost
of the cash back component of the Company’s customer loyalty programs be treated as a reduction in revenues. The Company rewards
certain customers with cash, based upon their level of play on certain casino games (primarily slot machines). These costs were previously
recorded as a casino expense. The EITF consensus was adopted by the Company in the quarter ended March 31, 2001. The Company
reclassified (i.e., reduced gaming revenue and gaming expense) the cash back component of its customer loyalty programs in the amount
of $21,497,000 related to the year ended December 31, 2000 to be consistent with the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
See Note 2.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS No. 144”)
In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-lived Assets”, which the Company adopted on January 1, 2002.

SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
book value of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company reviews its long-lived assets at each balance sheet date. If a long-lived
asset is to be retained, the Company assesses recoverability based on the asset’s future undiscounted cash flows over the remaining

life compared to the asset’s book value. If an impairment exists, the asset is written down to fair value, based on quoted market prices or
another valuation technique, such as discounted cash flow analysis. If a long-lived asset is to be sold, the asset is reported at the lower
of carrying value or fair value.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”)

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 addresses financial accounting for, and disclosure of,
guarantees. FIN 45 requires certain guarantees to be recorded at fair value, as opposed to the existing standard of recording a liability
only when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable according to SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.” The initial recognition
and initial measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The
disclosure requirements in the Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual period ending after December 15,
2002. The Company believes that the adoption of the recognition and initial measurement provision of FIN 45 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148 (“SFAS No. 148”) Reclassifications

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Certain reclassifications, having no effect on net income, have been made to the 2001 and 2000 amounts to be consistent with the
Issued to Employees and follows the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, 2002 financial statement presentation. These reclassifications include costs associated with the Company’s coin coupon offerings that
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123" to provide were previously recorded as a casino expense.

alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. SFAS No. 148 also requires disclosure in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reporting results. The transition guidance and annual

disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for years ending after December 15, 2002, and the annual disclosure provisions are |:| NOTE 2 —-—_GOODWILL, INTANGIBLES AND ADOPTION OF STATEMENT
implemented below. The interim disclosure requirements will be implemented in the first quarter of 2003. OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NO. 142

The Company has reclassified these amounts as a reduction of casino revenue. These amounts totaled $20,598,000 and $13,523,000
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company estimated the fair market value of stock options using an option-pricing model taking into account, as of the date of Goodwill
grant, the exercise price and expected life of the option, the then current price of the underlying stock and its expected volatility, Goodwill consists of the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business combinations and, prior
expected dividend on the stock, and the risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the options. to January 1, 2002, was being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years, except for the goodwill related to the acquisition of the

49% minority partner in Casino Magic Argentina, which was being amortized over the extended life of the concession agreement
(see “—Gaming Licenses” below). Pursuant to the implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
(“SFAS No. 142”) (discussed below), there was no goodwill amortization in 2002. Goodwill amortization expense for the years 2001

In computing the stock-based compensation, the following assumptions were made:

Risk-Free Original Expected Expected and 2000 was $2,848,000 and $3,030,000, respectively. Goodwill as of December 31, 2002 is $19,558,000.
Interest Expected \Volatility Dividends
Rate Life Gaming Licenses

Options granted in the following periods: Casino Magic Argentina. A portion of the acquisition price of Casino Magic Corp. in 1998 was allocated to a concession agreement to

1998 . o 4.5% 3to 10 years 40.1% None operate two casinos in Argentina. Such costs are being amortized, based on the straight-line method, over the extended life of the

1999 . 4.6% 10y 47.3% N concession agreement through 2016. The original concession agreement expires in 2006, but an extension signed in 2001 extends this
concession agreement through 2016, provided Casino Magic Argentina, among other things, pays admission taxes, makes annual

2007 o 4.7% 7 years 50.4% None o . . . e o .
contributions for scholarships and invests in the development of new facilities and related amenities in accordance with the terms of

2002 . .o 4.3% 5 years 51.2% None

the extension agreement. The dollar-denominated cost of such investment has been reduced significantly to approximately $2,950,000
at December 31, 2002 as a result of the Argentine government’s conversion of all contracts into peso-denominated contracts in January
2002, and the subsequent devaluation of the Argentine currency. The extension also provided that the agreement would be extended
an additional five years to 2021 if the Company elected to invest at least $1,475,000 (also converted from pesos) for construction of
new hotel facilities.

The following sets forth the pro forma financial results related to the Company’s employee stock-based compensation plans,
with respect to the options’ estimated fair value, based on the Company’s stock price at the grant date:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 2001 2000 In accordance with the guidance provided by SFAS No. 142 (see “Adoption of SFAS 142" below), the Company is amortizing the

(in thousands, except per share data) capitalized costs of the Argentina concession over the extended life of the concession agreement based on its expectation that it will
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, receive benefits from the concession agreement through 2016, taking into account the following factors: () so long as the Company
SRR ST ] SE e Eet] G EEEE BN GRS a o - $(12.925) $(28,649) $79,402 remains in compliance with the requirements of the extension agreement, which are within the Company’s control, the Company will be
Stock-based compensation expense, net of taxes . .......... 1,327 716 760 permitted to operate under the concession agreement through 2016; (i) at the current time, the Company has remained in compliance
Pro forma (loss) income before cumulative effect of change in with the terms of the extension agreement, except for certain changes and delays in the planning and construction schedules which
BEESUITE) [PHTETPIS EMe| SUREEMER e o o o vovooooooono (14,232) (el e) 787 have been verbally approved by the Province; (i) the Company currently intends, and believes it is able, to continue to perform under the
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... ....... 56,704 0 0 terms of the extension agreement; (iv) no other related assets of the Company limit the useful life of the concession agreement through
Extraordinary item, net of taxes . . .. ...t 0 0 2,653 2016; (v) at the current time, the Company is not aware of any obsolescence, demand, competition or other economic factors that limit
Pro forma (I0SS) iNCOMe . . . ..o v vv i __ $(r0,956) $(29,365) $76,079 the viability of the Argentina gaming market through 2016, although the Company continues to monitor the ongoing political and

economic instability in Argentina; and (vi) the only significant cost that the Company is required to incur in connection with the
concession is construction of additional facilities, which the Company has the intent and ability to fund with cash currently held in
Argentina and the anticipated operating cash flow of its Argentine operations.

Pro forma net (loss) income per common share—basic

Pro forma (loss) income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle and extraordinary income. . . . . . . . $(0.55) $(1.14) $2.99
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.. . . . . . (2.20) 0.00 0.00 The Company has been paying the required additional taxes and scholarship contributions, and, except as described in the next
Extraordinary item, net of tax benefit. . . . . ... ......... 0.00 0.00 0.10) paragraph, is in compliance with the other provisions of the concession agreement and extension agreement.
Pro forma net (loss) income per share—basic . . .. ...... $(2.75) $(1.14) $2.89 In January 2003, the Company reached an understanding with the Province, subject to definitive documentation, to modify the

Pro forma net (loss) income per common share—diluted conditions relating to the extension of the concession agreement to 2016 subject to construction of a new gaming and entertainment
Pro forma (1oss) income before cumulative effect of change facility in the city of Neuquen, Argentina. In addition, among other things, these modifications will result in the Company receiving the
in accounting principle and extraordinary income. . . . . . . . $(0.55) $(1.14) $2.87 ten-year extension of the agreement to 2016, provided that it makes an investment in new gaming facilities that exceeds the sum of
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . . . . (2.20) 0.00 0.00 approximately US$3,000,000 plus the net income generated by Casino Magic Argentina in 2003 through 2006. The Company currently
Extraordinary item, net of tax benefit. .. ... .. .. .. ... P56 B ~r ha§ c.ash of apprloxw.nately U§$3,000,000 held in Argentlne banks thatl is nqt needed fgr day-to—day operations. The Company

anticipates entering into a written agreement reflecting the understanding with the Province in the second quarter. Under the

Pro forma net (loss) income per share—diluted . . .. ... .. $2.75) $1.14) $2.77

understanding with the Province the concession agreement will be extended for an additional five years through 2021, if the
NVITEEY @ SREES=BEED o o 0 0o oo cccovo00000000000000s 2oE i EEIERS Company invests at least 5,000,000 pesos in new hotel facilities.
Number of shares—diluted . . . .. ... ooret et 25,773 25,814 27,456
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The unamortized gaming license costs related to Casino Magic Argentina as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $2,079,000 and
$4,949,000 (which amounts reflect the translation adjustment for Casino Magic Argentina assets and liabilities), respectively, and
amortization expense was $354,000 and $237,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Accumulated
amortization was $1,257,000 and $903,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Boomtown Bossier City In connection with the acquisition of Casino Magic Corp. in 1998, a portion of the purchase price was allocated
to the Louisiana gaming license, which license permits the Company to conduct the gaming operations of Boomtown Bossier City.
Through December 31, 2001, the cost of the gaming license was being amortized on the straight-line method over twenty-five years. In
connection with the implementation of SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002, the Company no longer amortizes the gaming license as
the Company has classified such asset as a non-amortizing intangible asset with an indefinite useful life based on management’s
assessment that no legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors limit the useful life of the gaming license. In
accordance with the guidance provided by SFAS No. 142, this assessment is based on the following pertinent factors: (i) the Company
currently expects to use the gaming license indefinitely; (i) no other related assets of the Company limit the useful life of the gaming
license; (iii) the Company believes that it will continue to be able to renew the Bossier City license every five years without substantial
cost or material modification, based in part upon the historic renewal experience of the Company and other holders of Louisiana casino
licenses; (iv) because the Louisiana gaming industry is relatively mature and stable, and the exclusivity of Louisiana gaming licenses is
currently protected by law, the Company believes that there are no known effects of obsolescence, demand, competition or other
economic factors that limit the economic life of the Bossier City gaming license; and (v) the Company is not required to make any
significant expenditures to maintain the Company'’s intangible Bossier City license rights.

Based on the classification of the gaming license as a non-amortizing intangible asset and pursuant to the implementation of SFAS No.
142, there was no gaming license amortization expense related to the Boomtown Bossier City license in 2002. Amortization expense in
each of 2001 and 2000 was $1,602,000. The remaining net book value of the Boomtown Bossier City gaming license as of December
31, 2002 is $19,865,000.

Adoption of SFAS No. 142

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 142, which was effective January 1, 2002, for the Company.
SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives no longer be amortized, but
rather be subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test.

The Company implemented SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002. During the three months ended March 31, 2002, the Company
recorded a transition adjustment impairment charge of $56,704,000, including a goodwill impairment charge of $49,169,000 related to
Casino Magic Biloxi, Boomtown Bossier City and Casino Magic Argentina and gaming license impairment charge of $7,535,000

(net of an income tax benefit of $4,239,000). In accordance with SFAS No. 142, such transition-adjustment charge was classified as

a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of the income tax benefit.

The gaming license impairment charge was determined under the “relief from royalty” principle. This principle indicates that a license
should not have a carrying value on the balance sheets if the licensee did not have to pay a significant fee to the licensing authority for
the initial license and that law and common practice does not have significant fees for anticipated license renewals. While the Company
does pay significant gaming taxes, it does not pay specific significant license fees except for the investigative and similar costs.

The carrying amount of such licenses prior to the recent impairment charge resulted from an acquisition of the facility and was
therefore similar to goodwill in nature.

The goodwill impairment results from the calculation of the fair value of Casino Magic Biloxi, Boomtown Bossier City and Casino Magic
Argentina. The properties’ fair values were determined by averaging the values indicated by the market and income approaches. The
market approach utilizes an analysis of publicly traded companies considered comparable to the Company with regard to service,
performance and markets. The income approach requires a projection of future discounted earning capacity of the Company.

The properties’ fair values were allocated to the properties’ tangible and intangible assets, net of working capital, until the fair values
were completely allocated. The recorded impairment is the resulting difference between the carrying value of the property

(including intangible assets) and its fair value, net of working capital.

Under these new rules, any future acquired intangible asset will be separately recognized if the benefit of the intangible is obtained
through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible asset can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, regardless
of the acquirer’s intent to do so. Intangible assets with finite lives will be amortized over their useful lives.

The following summarizes the goodwill and gaming licenses activities between December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002:

(in thousands) Less Foreign Currency
Balance as of Less Adjustment and Balance as of
December 31, Expected Amortization December 31,
2001 Losses (a) Expense (b) 2002
Goodwill:
Boomtown New Orleans. .. .. ............ $11,140 $0 $0 $11,140
BoomtownReno . .............. .. ... .. 8,418 0 0 8,418
Casino Magic Biloxi . .. ................. 18,609 (18,609) 0 0
Boomtown Bossier City . .. .............. 19,320 (19,320) 0 0
Casino Magic—Argentina. .. ............. 11,240 (11,240) 0 0
$68,727 $(49,169) $0 $19,558

Gaming Licenses:

Boomtown Bossier City non-amortizing

gaming license (8) « . ..o vvvi i $31,639 $(11,774) $0 $19,865
Casino Magic Argentina amortizing

gaming license (B) .. ... 4,949 0 (2,870) 2,079
Cumulative gaming licenses . . ............ $36,588 $(11,774) $(2,870) $21,944

(a) The Boomtown Bossier City gaming license impairment loss of $11,774,000 is before any income tax benefit from such loss. Net of the income tax benefit of $4,239,000, the cumulative
impairment charges due to the implementation of SFAS No. 142 are $56,704,000.
(b) Reflects the foreign currency translation adjustment of approximately $2,503,000 and additional accumulated amortization of $367,000 related to the Casino Magic Argentina gaming license.

The following table sets forth the pro forma effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 142:

For the years ended December 31, (in thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000

Pro forma adjusted net income (loss)

Income (loss) before extraordinary item . . ... ... $(28,649) $79,492
Reported Net iNCOME (I0SS) . . .+« « v e ettt et e e e e e $(28,649) $76,839
Goodwill amortization expense, net of income taxes. . . . ....... ... . 1,820 1,939
Boomtown Bossier City gaming license amortization expense, net of income taxes. . . . . 1,025 1,025

Pro forma adjusted net iNCOMe (I0SS) + .+« v v v i e $(25,804) $79,803

Per share pro forma adjusted net income (loss)—basic

Per share income (loss) before extraordinary item. . ... ... oo i $(1.11) $3.02
Per share reported Net iNCOME (I0SS) . .+« v v v vt e e e $(1.11) $2.92
Per share goodwill amortization expense, net of income taxes . ................... $0.07 $0.07
Per share Boomtown Bossier City gaming license amortization expense, net of taxes . . . 0.04 0.04

Per share pro forma adjusted net income (I0ss). .. .. ........ oL $(1.00) $3.03

Per share pro forma adjusted net loss —diluted

Per share income (loss) before extraordinary item. . .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... $(1.11) $2.90
Per share reported net iNCOME (I0SS) .« + + .+« « v v oo vttt ettt e $(1.11) $2.80
Per share goodwill amortization expense, net of incometaxes . ................... 0.07 0.07
Per share Boomtown Bossier City gaming license amortization expense, net of taxes . . . 0.04 0.04
Per share pro forma adjusted net income (I0SS) . . . . .« oo $(1.00) $2.91
NIl €17 @ SNENES=I0EEE o v 0 0 0 covnaaorroanasnonnosonnnnnoscannaanonoaan 25,814 26,335
Number of shares—diluted . . . . ....... ... ... .. ... . . 25,814 27,456
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NOTE 3 —-—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment held at December 31, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:

December 31, (In thousands) 2002 (a) 2001 (a)
Land and land improvements . . . ... ... $110,545 $106,643
Buildings . . . .o 327,990 327,864
Equipment. . . . .. 243,000 196,708
Vessel and barges . . ... ..o 115,222 112,029
CONSIUCHON N PrOGIESS. .+« v v v vt e e e e e e e e e e 2,958 12,129
799,715 755,373

Less accumulated depreciation. . . .. ... .. 213,632 179,074
$586,083 $576,299

(a) Excludes $12,160,000 and $18,285,000 of assets held for sale as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively (see Note 4). Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000 was $44,724,000, $43,595,000 and $39,635,000, respectively.

NOTE 4 —-ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

At December 31, 2002 assets held for sale consisted of 97 acres of unimproved land adjacent to the Hollywood Park Race Track in
Inglewood, California (the “Inglewood Land”). In June 2002, the Company entered into an agreement for the sale of 60 acres for
$36,000,000 in cash, before income taxes, to Rothbart Development Corporation. The close of escrow is scheduled for the second half
2003, subject to the buyer obtaining the necessary entitlements to develop the land. In addition, the buyer has the right to extend the
close of escrow under certain circumstance. The Company has also entered into an agreement to sell the remaining 37 acres for
$22,200,000 in cash, before income taxes, to a regional home builder. The close of this escrow is scheduled for the second half of 2003,
again subject to the buyer obtaining the necessary entitlements to develop the land. The approximate book value of the 97 acres of real
property as of December 31, 2002 was $12,160,000.

Assets held for sale at December 31, 2001 consisted primarily of the Inglewood Land and the Crystal Park Casino in Compton,
California. The Inglewood Land is included in corporate assets, while the Crystal Park Casino is included in the card clubs segment.
Although the Company continues to seek a suitable buyer for the Crystal Park Casino, it was not successful in doing so during 2002
on terms acceptable to the Company and has reclassified the Casino to Property, Plant and Equipment at December 31, 2002.

NOTE 5 —EXPANSION AND DEVELOPMENT

Lake Charles Project

In October 2001, the Company was selected by the Louisiana Gaming Control Board (the “Gaming Control Board”) to receive the
fifteenth and final gaming license that can be issued under current law in Louisiana. The Company plans to build a destination resort that
will include approximately 700 guestrooms (including suites), approximately 28,000 square feet of meeting space, five restaurants serving
regional cuisine, a championship golf course, an expansive outdoor pool area, retail shops and a full-service spa. The dockside casino
riverboat will be on one level, surrounded on three sides by the hotel and restaurant. The casino is expected to have over 1,500 slot
machines and 60 table games.

Issuance of the license is subject to continued compliance with certain conditions finalized with the Gaming Control Board in November
2001, including, but not limited to: (i) submitting the major construction contracts in March 2008 (i) demonstrating the financial resources
to commence the project within ten days of the Gaming Control Board’s approval of the construction contracts; (i) beginning
construction within thirty days of the Gaming Control Board’s approval of the construction contracts (subject to customary permitting
and U.S. Army Corp of Engineer approval); (iv) completing the project within 18 months of beginning construction; and (v) other
construction milestone dates. Conditions satisfied in 2002 include, but are not limited to: (i) approval of the project by local voters; (i)
setting aside $22,500,000 into a short term investment account (to be used only for the project once construction commences); and (i)
approval of the detailed design plans from the Gaming Control Board. It is anticipated that the Gaming Control Board will complete its
review of the construction contracts in the second quarter of 2003.

The Company believes the necessary approvals required to commence construction, and continue to satisfy the conditions of the
Gaming Control Board, will be obtained in the second quarter of 2003. However, there are no assurances that the Company will be
successful in obtaining all necessary approvals, or continue to satisfy the conditions. In the event the Company does not meet all of the
conditions, the Gaming Control Board may retract their selection of the Company for the fifteenth license.

In August 2002, the Company exercised its options to lease from the Lake Charles Harbor and Terminal District (the “District”) 227 acres
of unimproved land upon which the project will be constructed. Effectiveness of the lease agreements is subject to the satisfaction of
various conditions, including obtaining all of the necessary permits and approvals to construct the project. The leases call for annual
payments of $835,600, commencing upon opening of the resort complex, with a maximum annual increase thereafter of 5%. Upon
effectiveness, the leases will have initial terms of ten years with six renewal options of ten years each. In addition, the Company entered
into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the City of Lake Charles, Calcasieu Parish and the District requiring the Company to make
infrastructure improvements, including, among other things, a road extension and utility improvements, and pay non-specific impact fees,
which, collectively, are expected to approximate $11,400,000. The Company has included such obligations in the $325,000,000 project
budget. The Company also entered into an option to lease an additional 75 acres of unimproved land adjacent to the 227 acres.

The lease option is for a one-year period, with three one-year renewal options, at a cost of $37,500 per option period. The terms of the
lease, if the option were exercised, would be substantially similar to the terms of the leases for the 227 acres.

All costs incurred by the Company related to obtaining this license have been expensed as incurred.

Belterra

In February 2003, the Company broke ground on a $37,000,000 expansion project at the Belterra Casino Resort that will add 300
guestrooms, for a total of 608, and will also give the property approximately 33,000 square feet of meeting and conference space, a
year-round swimming pool and other amenities. As part of the Settlement Agreement with the Indiana Gaming Control Board in August
2002, the Company agreed to complete this project by July 2004 and placed $5 million into a separate escrow account (see Note 11)
that will be released back to the Company upon opening the new hotel tower. The Company does not anticipate significant construction
disruption to its existing operations during the construction of this expansion, which is expected to be completed in the first half of 2004.

NOTE 6 —ASSET WRITE-DOWNS AND IMPAIRMENTS

In 2002, the Company wrote-off $2,753,000 of design and architecture plans, incurred in earlier years, for a casino riverboat and hotel
tower at Boomtown Bossier City and a parking garage at Casino Magic Biloxi, projects that are not being pursued at the present time.

In 2001, the Company, under provisions of SFAS No. 121, determined that it would not be able to recover the net book value of the
Crystal Park Casino card club on an undiscounted cash flow basis, as it had agreed to reduce the monthly rent paid by the tenant from
$100,000 to $20,000 per month. As such, the Company recorded an impairment write-down of the long-lived assets at Crystal Park
Casino card club of $20,358,000 representing the difference between its net book value of $26,358,000 and its estimated fair value less
estimated costs to sell. Fair value was determined by management based on current real estate and market conditions of the property. In
addition, the Company determined it would not be able to recover the net book value of an unused riverboat at Boomtown New Orleans
and recorded an impairment write-down of approximately $1,808,000 representing the difference between its net book value of
$1,932,000 and its estimated fair value less estimated selling costs. Fair value of the riverboat was based upon offers to purchase the
asset for salvage value. The riverboat was sold in 2002 for a modest gain. Finally, in 2001, a breakwater and other assets at Casino
Biloxi were written-down and the Company recorded an asset impairment charge of approximately $1,364,000.

NOTE 7 —ASSETS SOLD

Note Receivable
In 2001, the Company realized a pre-tax gain of approximately $639,000 from the early collection from a Native American tribe of a
$6,300,000 note receivable and related agreements.

Casino and Race Track Sales

In August 2000, the Company completed the sale of two of its casinos in Mississippi, Casino Magic Bay St. Louis and Boomtown Biloxi,
for $195,000,000 in cash. The after-tax gain from these sales was approximately $35,538,000. In June 2000, the Company completed
the sale of Turf Paradise, a horse racetrack in Phoenix, Arizona, for $53,000,000 in cash. The after-tax gain from the sale was
approximately $21,262,000. 2000 condensed results of operations before income taxes for sold operations were:

Casino Sale (a) Track Sale (b)
(in thousands) 2000 2000
REVENUES (C) .+« v v vt e e e e e e e e $93,668 $10,665
EXPENSES . o 76,417 7,628
Operating INCOME . . . . oo 17,251 3,037
Interest expense (INCOME). . . ... oo 90 (49)
Income before INCOME taXES . . . v oot v et $17,161 $3,086

(a) For the period January 1, 2000 to August 8, 2000, date of sale.
(b) For the period January 1, 2000 to June 13, 2000, date of sale.
(c) Revenues for the Casino sale include proceeds from the settlement of a business interruption claim of approximately $1,204,000 related to hurricane damage and casino closure in September 1998.

49



50

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land Sale
In March 2000, the Company completed the sale of approximately 42 acres of surplus land in Inglewood, California for
$24,200,000 in cash. The after tax gain from this sale was approximately $15,322,000.

D NOTE 8 —SECURED AND UNSECURED NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable at December 31, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:

December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001
Secured notes payable, credit facility. . .. .. ... $0 $0
Unsecured 9.25% NOES . . . .. vt v vttt 350,000 350,000
Unsecured 9.5% NOES. . . . .. oottt 125,000 125,000
Hollywood Park-Casino debt obligation . . ... ....... ... ... .. 16,866 18,847
Other secured NOtes PaYabIe . . . .. oo v ittt 1,482 2,407
Other unsecured notes payable. . .. .. ..ottt 150 893
493,498 497,147

(LESS GUITEN MERUITIES o o 0 0 0 000 0ono0000000a00000000000000000000000000000 2,419 3,654
$491,079 $493,493

Secured Notes Payable, Bank Credit Facility

Subsequent to December 31, 2002, the Company secured underwriting agreements from a group of lenders for a $225,000,000
amended and restated bank credit facility (see Note 18). As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company maintained a reducing
revolving bank credit facility with a syndicate of banks in the amount of $110,000,000 (the “Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility expires
December 31, 2003 and has scheduled commitment reductions of $6,667,000 on March 31, 2003 and $16,667,000 on each June 30
and September 30, 2003. During 2001, the commitment was reduced to the existing $110,000,000 from a balance of $170,000,000 at
December 31, 2000. The Credit Facility has remained unused since February 1999. The Credit Facility provides for letters of credit up to
$30,000,000 and swing line loans of up to $10,000,000.

Interest rates on borrowings under the Credit Facility are determined by adding a margin, which is based upon the Company’s debt to
cash flow ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility), to either the LIBOR rate or Prime Rate (at the Company’s option). The Company also
pays a quarterly commitment fee on the unused balance of the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility allows for interest rate swap agreements
or other interest rate protection agreements. Presently, the Company does not use such financial instruments.

In 2001, the Company and the bank syndicate executed Amendments No. 5 and No. 6, which, among other things: (i) amended various
financial covenant ratios to be more consistent with current operations, (i) allowed for certain capital expenditures, including the Lake
Charles project and Bossier City expansion, (iii) suspended any additional stock repurchase activity and, (iv) required the Company to
utilize its cash (other than working capital and casino cash) prior to drawing on the facility.

Unsecured 9.25% and 9.5% Notes

February of 1999, the Company issued $350,000,000 principal amount of 9.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 (the “9.25%
Notes”), the proceeds from which were used to pay the outstanding borrowings on the Credit Facility, to fund current capital
expenditures, and for other general corporate purposes.

In August of 1997, the Company issued $125,000,000 principal amount of 9.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2007 (the “9.5%
Notes”). On January 29, 1999, the Company received the required number of consents to modify selected covenants associated with
the 9.5% Notes. Among other things, the modifications lowered the required minimum consolidated coverage ratio for debt assumption
and increased the size of allowed borrowings under the Credit Facility. The Company paid a consent fee of $50 per $1,000 principal
amount of the 9.5% Notes which, combined with other transactional expenses, is being amortized over the remaining term of the

9.5% Notes.

The 9.25% and 9.5% Notes are redeemable, at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, on the following dates, at the following
premium-to-face values:

9.25% NOTES REDEEMABLE: 9.5% NOTES REDEEMABLE:
After February 14 At a Premium of After July 31, At a Premium of

2003 104.625% 2002 104.750%
2004 103.083% 2003 102.375%
2005 101.542% 2004 101.188%
2006 100.000% 2005 100.000%
2007 Maturity 2006 100.000%

2007 Maturity

Both the 9.25% and the 9.5% Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company, guaranteed by all material restricted subsidiaries of the
Company, as defined in the indentures. The Casino Magic Argentina subsidiaries do not guaranty the debt. The indentures governing
the 9.25% and 9.5% Notes, as well as the Credit Facility, contain certain covenants limiting the ability of the Company and its restricted
subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock, pay dividends or make certain distributions, repurchase equity
interests or subordinated indebtedness, create certain liens, enter into certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets, issue or sell equity
interests in its subsidiaries, or enter into certain mergers and consolidations. The Company is permitted, under both indentures, to
amend, restate, modify or refinance its Credit Facility to a maximum of $350,000,000 of such debt outstanding. It is also permitted to
put up to 50% of its undeveloped real estate, measured in acres, into an unrestricted subsidiary. The proceeds of any subsequent sale
of the such land would also remain unrestricted. The Inglewood land currently under contracts to be sold comprises less than half of the
Company’s undeveloped land. As of December 31, 2002, and based on quoted market values, the fair values of the 9.25% and 9.5%
Notes are approximately $311,500,000 and $111,875,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2002, the Company was in compliance
with the indenture covenants.

Redemption of Casino Magic 13% Notes and Extraordinary Item

In August 2000, the Company redeemed the Casino Magic 13% First Mortgage Notes at a redemption price of 106.5%. Upon deposit of
principal, premium and accrued interest for such redemption, Casino Magic of Louisiana satisfied all conditions required to discharge its
obligations under the indenture. In connection with the redemption, the Company recorded an extraordinary loss of $2,653,000, net of
federal and state income taxes, or $0.10 per basic and diluted share. The extraordinary loss represents the payment of the redemption
premium and the write-off of deferred finance and premium costs, net of the related federal and state income tax benefit of $1,493,000.
Following the redemption, Casino Magic of Louisiana became a guarantor of the Credit Facility, the 9.25% Notes and the 9.5% Notes.

Hollywood Park-Casino Debt Obligation

In connection with the disposition of the Hollywood Park-Casino to Churchill Downs and sublease to a third-party operator in September
1999, the Company recorded a long-term lease obligation of $23,000,000 (equal to the Company’s gross investment in the lease).
Annual lease payments to Churchill Downs of $3,000,000 are applied as a reduction of principal and interest expense. The debt
obligation is being amortized, based on the effective interest method, over 10 years (the initial lease term with Churchill Downs).

The Company’s net investment in the Hollywood Park-Casino is $18,017,000 and $19,550,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and is included in Property, Plant and Equipment on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Annual Maturities
As of December 31, 2002, annual maturities of secured and unsecured notes payable (including the long-term lease obligation related
to the Hollywood Park-Casino) are as follows:

Year ending December 31, (in thousands)

2008 $3,296
Z0/0%3 6 660606060 00606000006006000005060000000060000000000000060000006006400600600606060 3,103
2005 3,107
20068 . . 3,062
2007 478,149
UIEEEWET 0 00000 00000a00000000000000000600a0aD00000A00000000000000000R0AA00D0000000 6,765
497,482

Less interest related to the long term lease obligation. . . .. ... ... . .. . . (3,984)
$493,498
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The following table reconciles the Company’s income tax expense to the federal statutory tax rate of 35%:
NOTE 9 —LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company has certain long term operating lease obligations, including corporate office space, land at Belterra Casino Resort, office For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
equipment and gaming equipment. Minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have initial terms in excess of one Federal income tax expense (benefit) at the statutory rate. . . . . . $(6,675) $(17,694) $46,161
year as of December 31, 2002 are as follows: State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits . . . ... ........ (1,541) (2,781) 6,124
Other expenses (INCOME). . .. . .o v et 2,070 8,173 111
Reduction in valuation allowance. . .. .................... 0 (4,604) 0
Period: (in thousands) ) ‘ .
Income tax expense (benefit) before extraordinary item. . ... ... (6,146) (21,906) 52,396
2008 o $7,383
Tax benefit of extraordinary item . .. ........... ... .. ... .. (4,238) 0 (1,493)
2004 5,617
Income tax (benefit) eXpense. . ... .. $(10,384) $(21,906) $50,903
2005 5,361
27010 T Y 4,851
2007 . 3,798 At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
TherEafter . . . oo 13,200 and deferred tax liabilities were:
$40,210
December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001

Deferred tax assets—current:

Total rent expense for these long-term lease obligations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $6,291,000, Workers’ COMPENsation INSUFANGE IESEIVE - -« + + + ++ v v v $208 8487
$9,488,000 and $7,281,000, respectively. General liability INSUrANCE MESEIVE . . .« o o vttt 535 75
The Company is also a party to a number of cancelable slot participation arrangements at its various casinos, which arrangements are Vacation and Sick pay @CCTUAI . . . . oottt e e e 1,464 1,390
customary for casino operations. The arrangements consist of either a fixed rent agreement on a per day basis or a percentage of each Legal and MErger GOSES « « « « + « v v v e e et e e e 1,640 1,840
slot machines’ gaming revenue, generally payable at month-end. Slot participation expense was $16,273,000, $9,539,000 and Other 1612 920
$7,048,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Net current deferred tax assets .. ... $5,549 $4,712
|:| NOTE 10 —INCOME TAXES Deferred tax assets—non-current:
Net operating loss carry-forwards. . ... ... . $8,346 $9,042
The composition of the Company’s income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was e (5 e e [ NS G s M) S5 o e o 5 s e s a2 aem e o e 6,504 11,736
as follows:
Asset impairment Write-dowNS . . . .. o 8,043 9,454
Los Angeles revitalization zone tax credits. . .. ....... ... o oo oL 9,967 9,967
(in thousands) Burrent Deferred Total OFNBT .+ o e e et e 11,036 0
Year ended December 31, 2002: Less valuation allowance . . . .. ... .o (9,500) (9,500)
US. Federal . - o\ $5,648) $(3,287) $(8,935) Deferred tax liabilitieS—non-Current: ... ...... ... .ttt $34,396 $30,699
Depreciation, amortization, pre-opening expenses
SEAE. « v v v e 86 (2,457) (2,371) andother . .\ E (47,383) (53,385)
RN aaceacaaaccaccancconcacscoscaasannsan: S22 v o Net non-current deferred tax liabilities. . ... ... i i $(12,987) $(22,686)
$(4,640) $(5,744) $(10,384) (b)

Year ended December 31, 2001:

US. Federal . ..ot $(3,866) $(16,200) $(20,066)
Prior to 2000, the Company earned a substantial amount of California tax credits related to the ownership and operation of the
SIBIE. 607) (2.540) (6.189) Hollywood Park Race Track and Hollywood Park-Casino as well as the ownership of the Crystal Park Card Club Casino, which were
RN 2 0000000000000000000000000000000000a0¢ 1,5 o SIS located in the Los Angeles Revitalization Tax Zone (LARZ). As of December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately $9,967,000 of
$(3,160) $(18,746) $(21,906) Los Angeles Revitalization Zone (“LARZ”) tax credits. The LARZ tax credits can only be used to reduce certain California tax liabilities.
Year ended December 31, 2000: A valuation allowance has been recorded with respect to the LARZ tax credits because the Company may not generate enough income
US. FEAEIal « o oo oo oo $52,545 $(10,119) $42,426 subject to California tax to utilize the credits before they expire. The amount subject to carry-forward of these unused California tax
State. . o 8,249 (2,125) 6.124 credits (net of valuation allowance) was approximately $967,000. The LARZ credits will expire between 2007 to 2012.
FOTBIGN « v vt 2,353 0 2,353 During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company incurred an approximate $48,675,000 federal net operating loss (“NOL”).
$63,147 $(12,244) $50,903 (a) The Company intends to carry-back the 2002 NOL to earlier years and is expected to receive a federal tax refund of a minimum of

$6,000,000, to be received in 2003. As a result of the NOL carry-back, tax credits of approximately $11,000,000 will be available for

carry-forwards to offset future federal taxes.
(a) Includes $1,493,000 of tax benefit of extraordinary item.
(b) Includes $4,238,000 of tax benefit of cumulative change in accounting principle (see Note 2).
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For the years ended 2002 and 2001, the Company received net cash tax refund of $2,370,000 and $23,088,000, respectively. For the
year 2000, due to substantial asset sales in 2000 and 1999, the Company paid cash taxes of $64,600,000.

In October 2002, the Company settled with the Internal Revenue Service with respect to its examination of the Casino Magic entities for
the income tax period 1992 through 1996, resulting in a final tax and interest payment of $4,230,000 that had been accrued in prior
years. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s federal net operating loss (“NOL”") carry-forwards remaining from the Casino Magic
acquisition in 1998 are approximately $12,157,000 net of the IRS audit adjustments. The NOL carry-forwards expire on various dates
through 2018. The Company’s use of Casino Magic’s NOL carry-forwards is subject to restrictions imposed by Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code.

|:| NOTE 11 —COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Indiana Regulatory Settlement and Related Costs

In 2002 the Company incurred estimated regulatory, legal and other settlement costs of $6,609,000 in connection with an investigation
by the Indiana Gaming Commission into events surrounding, and claims underlying, lawsuits filed by two former Belterra Casino Resort
employees and events surrounding a golf tournament held in 2001. The lawsuits were settled during 2002.

In August 2002, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the Indiana Gaming Commission. The Company agreed, among
other things, to pay a fine of $2,260,000; suspend gaming operations at the Belterra Casino Resort for three days in October 2002; pay
estimated wages, tips, taxes and community development fees that would have been paid had the operation not been closed during the
three-day closure period; build a new 300-guestroom tower by July 2004; and establish a new compliance committee of the Company’s
Board of Directors. Except for the guestroom tower, which is under construction, all elements of the settlement agreement have

been completed.

The Company also placed $5,000,000 into an escrow account to ensure the completion of the new guestroom tower by July 2004, at
which time the funds will be released back to the Company. In the event the Company does not complete the tower by July 29, 2004
(subject to extension for events beyond the Company’s control upon approval by the Indiana Gaming Commission), the $5,000,000
escrowed funds will be paid to the Indiana Gaming Commission.

Settlement costs in 2002 include the fine, investigation costs, estimated severance and settlement with former officers and
estimated legal and other related costs. The estimated costs may be subject to revision upon final disposition of these matters after
December 31, 2002.

Employment and Severance Agreement

The Company has employment agreements with four officers (including one whose employment began in January 2003) and three other
key employees. The agreements grant the employee the right to receive his annual salary, and in some cases, a guaranteed incentive
compensation, for up to the balance of the contract periods which have expiration dates between May 2003 and September 2007,

plus extension of certain benefits and the immediate vesting of certain stock options, if the Company terminates the employee without
cause or if the employee terminates the contract for good reason (both as defined in the employment agreement). The agreements have
expiration dates between May 2003 and September 2007. In the event of a change in control (as defined in the employment agreement),
followed by a diminution of duties, failure to pay a minimum bonus level during the first twelve months of the change of control, or termi-
nation (each a “Severance Trigger”), the employee is entitled to receive in some cases one year’s salary, and for others the remaining
portion of the contract amount including the guaranteed incentive compensation, plus extension of certain benefits and the immediate
vesting of all stock options. In the case of the Company’s CEO, the Severance Trigger is not applicable. At December 31, 2002, the
maximum contingent liability for salary and incentive compensation under these agreements was approximately $8,587,000.

City Annexation Costs

During 2002, the 569 acres owned by the Company at Boomtown Reno, of which approximately 60 acres are currently used in the
operation, were annexed into the City of Reno, Nevada. The City has contracted the design for an extension of the municipal sewer line
to the Boomtown property. The Company estimates the sewer hook-up fees to Boomtown could approximate $1,500,000. When the
project is completed in 2004 the annual sewer service fee could be approximately $250,000 higher than the costs incurred in 2002 to
operate the Company’s own sewage treatment plant. In addition, the Company anticipates the annual city licenses and taxes will be an
additional $350,000 over such costs before the annexation. The determination of the final hook-up fees, the annual sewer service fees,
licenses and city taxes will be determined by various factors in the future. At the time Boomtown Reno is connected to the municipal
sewer system, it will cease to operate the existing sewer treatment plant on the property. The annexation of the property by the City of
Reno and the extension of city services, particularly sewage treatment capability, make it considerably more feasible to develop the

Company’s surplus land. The Company has not determined whether it will develop such land itself, sell such land to others who may
develop it, or a combination of the two.

Construction Commitments

The Company is in the early stages of developing and building projects in Louisiana and Indiana, described in Note 5. The total costs of
such projects are estimated to be $362,000,000, inclusive of capitalized interest and pre-opening costs. At December 31, 2002, the
Company had expended approximately $4,446,000 of this amount and had entered into agreements related to design, development and
construction for approximately $10,023,000.

Self Insurance Reserves
The Company self-insures various levels of general liability, property, workers’ compensation and medical coverage. Insurance reserves
include accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of estimates of incurred but not reported claims.

Legal

Astoria Entertainment Litigation in November 1998, Astoria Entertainment, Inc. filed a complaint in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Louisiana. Astoria, an unsuccessful applicant for a license to operate a riverboat casino in Louisiana, attempted to
assert a claim under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”), seeking damages allegedly resulting from its
failure to obtain a license. Astoria named several companies and individuals as defendants, including Hollywood Park, Inc.

(the predecessor to Pinnacle Entertainment), Louisiana Gaming Enterprises, Inc. (“LGE”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pinnacle
Entertainment, and an employee of Boomtown, Inc. The Company believed the RICO claim against it had no merit and, indeed,

Astoria voluntarily dismissed its RICO claim against Hollywood Park, LGE, and the Boomtown employee.

On March 1, 2001, Astoria amended its complaint. Astoria’s amended complaint added new legal claims, and named Boomtown, Inc.
and LGE as defendants. Astoria claims that the defendants () conspired to corrupt the process for awarding licenses to operate riverboat
casinos in Louisiana, (i) succeeded in corrupting the process, (iii) violated federal and Louisiana antitrust laws, and (iv) violated the
Louisiana Unfair Trade Practices Act. The amended complaint asserts that Astoria would have obtained a license to operate a riverboat
casino in Louisiana, but for these alleged improper acts. On August 21, 2001, the court dismissed Astoria’s federal claims with prejudice
and its state claims without prejudice. On September 21, 2001, Astoria appealed those dismissals to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit. On October 3, 2001, Boomtown, Inc. and LGE filed a cross-appeal on the grounds that the state claims should have been
dismissed with prejudice. Astoria subsequently voluntarily dismissed its appeal. In May 2002, Astoria refiled its state claims in the Civil
District Court for the Parish of Orleans, Louisiana. On January 7, 2003, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed the lower court’s
dismissal of plaintiff’s state law claims without prejudice. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this litigation, management
intends to defend it vigorously.

Poulos Lawsuit A class action lawsuit was filed on April 26, 1994, in the United States District Court, Middle District of Florida

(the “Poulos Lawsuit”), naming as defendants 41 manufacturers, distributors and casino operators of video poker and electronic slot
machines, including Casino Magic. The lawsuit alleges that the defendants have engaged in a course of fraudulent and misleading
conduct intended to induce people to play such games based on false beliefs concerning the operation of the gaming machines and the
extent to which there is an opportunity to win. The suit alleges violations of RICO, as well as claims of common law fraud, unjust
enrichment and negligent misrepresentation, and seeks damages in excess of $6 billion. On May 10, 1994, a second class action lawsuit
was filed in the United States District Court, Middle District of Florida (the “Ahern Lawsuit”), naming as defendants the same defendants
who were named in the Poulos Lawsuit and adding as defendants the owners of certain casino operations in Puerto Rico and the
Bahamas, who were not named as defendants in the Poulos Lawsuit. The claims in the Ahern Lawsuit are identical to the claims in the
Poulos Lawsuit. Because of the similarity of parties and claims, the Poulos Lawsuit and Ahern Lawsuit were consolidated into one case
file (the “Poulos/Ahern Lawsuit”) in the United States District Court, Middle District of Florida. On December 9, 1994 a motion by the
defendants for change of venue was granted, transferring the case to the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Las
Vegas. In an order dated April 17, 1996, the court granted motions to dismiss filed by Casino Magic and other defendants and dismissed
the complaint without prejudice. The plaintiffs then filed an amended complaint on May 31, 1996 seeking damages against Casino Magic
and other defendants in excess of $1 billion and punitive damages for violations of RICO and for state common law claims for fraud,
unjust enrichment and negligent misrepresentation.

At a December 13, 1996 status conference, the Poulos/Ahern Lawsuit was consolidated with two other class action lawsuits (one on
behalf of a smaller, more defined class of plaintiffs and one against additional defendants) involving allegations substantially identical to
those in the Poulos/Ahern Lawsuit (collectively, the “Consolidated Lawsuits”) and all pending motions in the Consolidated Lawsuits were
deemed withdrawn without prejudice. The plaintiffs in the Consolidated Lawsuits filed a consolidated amended complaint on February 14,
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1997, which the defendants moved to dismiss. On December 19, 1997, the court granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss certain
allegations in the RICO claim, but denied the motion as to the remainder of such claim; granted the defendants’ motion to strike certain
parts of the consolidated amended complaint; denied the defendants’ remaining motions to dismiss and to stay or abstain; and
permitted the plaintiffs to substitute one of the class representatives. On January 9, 1998, the plaintiffs filed a second consolidated
amended complaint containing claims nearly identical to those in the previously dismissed complaints. The defendants answered,
denying the substantive allegations of the second consolidated amended complaint. On June 21, 2002, the court denied plaintiffs’
motion for class certification. On July 11, 2002, the plaintiffs’ filed a petition for permission to appeal the court’s denial of the plaintiffs’
motion for class certification. On August 15, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit granted plaintiffs’ petition.
On August 23, 2002, the plaintiffs filed their notice of appeal with the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada.

The claims are not covered under the Company’s insurance policies. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action,
management intends to defend it vigorously.

Casino America Litigation on or about September 6, 1996, Casino America, Inc. commenced litigation in the Chancery Court of Harrison
County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District, against Casino Magic Corp., and James Edward Ernst, its then Chief Executive Officer. In
the complaint, as amended, the plaintiff claims, among other things, that the defendants (i) breached the terms of an agreement they had
with the plaintiff; (i) tortuously interfered with certain of the plaintiff’s contracts and business relations; and (jii) breached covenants of
good faith and fair dealing they allegedly owed to the plaintiff, and seeks compensatory damages in an amount to be proven at trial as
well as punitive damages. On November 30, 1999 the case was transferred to the Circuit Court for the Second Judicial District of
Harrison County. The trial began on November 12, 2002. On November 21, 2002, the jury rendered a unanimous verdict in favor of the
Company and Ed Ernst. On November 25, 2002, the court entered a judgement in favor of the defendants. On December 5, 2002,
plaintiff filed a motion for new trial. On March 11, 2003, the court denied plaintiff’s motion for a new trial. The Company’s insurer has
essentially denied coverage of the claim against Mr. Ernst under the Company’s directors and officer’s insurance policy, but has reserved
its right to review the matter as to tortuous interference at or following trial. The Company, who is indemnifying Mr. Ernst, believes that
the insurer should not be permitted to deny coverage, although no assurances can be given that the insurer will change its position.
While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action, management intends to continue to defend it vigorously if plaintiff appeals
the judgement.

Casino Magic Biloxi Patron Incident on January 13, 2001, three Casino Magic Biloxi patrons sustained injuries as a result of an assault by
another Casino Magic Biloxi patron, who then killed himself. Several other patrons sustained injuries while attempting to exit the

casino. On August 1, 2001, two of the casino patrons injured during the January 13, 2001 incident filed a complaint in the Circuit Court
of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District. The complaint alleges that Biloxi Casino Corp. failed to exercise reasonable care
to keep its patrons safe from foreseeable criminal acts of third persons and seeks unspecified compensatory and punitive damages.

The plaintiffs filed an amended complaint on August 17, 2001. The amended complaint added an allegation that Biloxi Casino Corp.
violated a Mississippi statute by serving alcoholic beverages to the perpetrator who was allegedly visibly intoxicated and that Biloxi
Casino Corp.’s violation of the statute was the proximate cause of or contributing cause to plaintiffs’ injuries. On March 20, 2002, the
third injured victim filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District. The allegations in the
complaint are substantially similar to those contained in the August 1, 2001 lawsuit. The trial for the August 1, 2001 lawsuit has been

set for July 21, 2003. No trial date has been set for the subsequent suit. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of these
actions, the Company, together with its applicable insurers, intends to defend them vigorously.

Actions by Greek Authorities in 1995, a subsidiary of Casino Magic Corp., Casino Magic Europe B.V. (“CME”), performed management
services for Porto Carras Casino, S.A. (“PCC”), a joint venture in which CME had a minority interest. Effective December 31, 1995, CME,
with the approval of PCC, assigned its interests and obligations under the PCC management agreement to a Greek subsidiary, Casino
Magic Hellas S.A. (“Hellas”). Hellas issued invoices to PCC for management fees that accrued during 1995, but had not been billed

by CME.

In September 1996, local Greek tax authorities in Thessaloniki assessed a penalty of approximately $3.5 million against Hellas, and an
equal amount against PCC, arising out of the presentation and payment of the invoices. The Thessaloniki tax authorities asserted that
the Hellas invoices were fictitious, representing an effort to reduce the taxable income of PCC.

PCC and Hellas each appealed their respective assessments. The assessment of the fine against PCC was overturned by the
Administrative Court of Thessaloniki on December 11, 2000. The court determined that the actions taken by Hellas and PCC were
not fictitious but constituted a legitimate business transaction and accordingly overturned the assessment of the fine. Hellas’s appeal

was dismissed for technical procedural failures and has not been reinstated; presumably, however, the rationale of the court in the PCC
fine matter would apply equally to the Hellas fine matter, assuming the court’s decision is upheld on appeal (see below).

During the first quarter of 2001, the Greek taxing authorities appealed the December 11, 2000 decision by the Administrative Court
of Thessaloniki overturning the assessment of the fine against PCC. No hearing date on such appeal has been set.

Under Greek law, shareholders are not liable for the liabilities of a Greek company in which they hold shares, even if the entity is later
liquidated or dissolved, and assessments such as the PCC and Hellas fines generally are treated as liabilities of the company. Additionally,
all of PCC’s stock was sold to an unrelated company in December of 1996, and the buyer assumed all of PCC'’s liabilities. Therefore,
management does not expect that this matter will have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of
the Company.

In June 2000, Greek authorities issued a warrant to appear at a September 29, 2000 criminal proceeding to Marlin Torguson (a member
of the Company’s board of directors and Chairman of the Board of CME in 1995) and Robert Callaway (former Associate General
Counsel for the Company and, prior to its acquisition by the Company, CME’s General Counsel). They were charged under Greek law,
and convicted inabsentia, as being culpable criminally for corporate misconduct based solely on their status as alleged executive board
members of PCC. The Company is advised that they are not, and have never been, managing (active) executive directors of PCC.
Accordingly, the Company believes that they were improperly named in the proceedings. The defendants have a right of appeal for a de
novo trial under Greek law.

On March 30, 2001, appeals on behalf of Messrs. Torguson and Callaway were filed. The hearing before the three-member Court of
Misdemeanors of Thessaloniki was continued. The hearing is currently set to be heard on April 10, 2003.

The Company has been advised that the resolution of the related civil penalties may sometimes resolve criminal issues in Greece.
The Company is actively working to resolve the civil and criminal actions related to this matter.

Shareholder Derivative Action on December 13, 2002, William T. Kelsey, an individual shareholder of the Company, filed a derivative
lawsuit purportedly on behalf of the Company against the Company’s former Chairman R.D. Hubbard, former CEO Paul R. Alanis,
Chairman and CEO Daniel R. Lee, various other current and former directors of the Company, and against the Company itself as a
nominal defendant. The lawsuit, brought in California Superior Court in Los Angeles County, alleges, among other things, breaches of
fiduciary duty, negligence, mismanagement and violations of the RICO Act by the defendants in connection with the events surrounding
a golf tournament held at the Company'’s Belterra Casino Resort in June 2001. The complaint alleges that the Company is entitled to
recover unspecified damages in excess of $10 million, plus exemplary, punitive and treble damages and the plaintiff’s fees and costs.
The Company has empowered a Special Committee of three independent directors to perform an investigation and determine whether
pursuit of this derivative lawsuit is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Court has entered a stay of the litigation
until May to allow the directors to conduct a good faith investigation in this respect.

Alanis Suit on or about December 3, 2002, Paul Alanis filed a lawsuit against the Company, R. D. Hubbard and Daniel R. Lee, claiming,

among other things, wrongful termination and defamation. He seeks unspecified compensatory and punitive damages. On February 11,
20083, the court granted the Company’s motion to send the matter to arbitration, with the exception of the defamation claims against Mr.
Lee, and stayed the entire action pending such arbitration. While the outcome of this action cannot be predicted, the Company and Mr.

Lee intend to defend it vigorously.

New Hampshire Insurance Company Lawsuit on July 31, 2000, a collision occurred between the M/V Miss Belterra and the M/V
Elizabeth Ann riverboats. On or about August 15, 2002, New Hampshire Insurance Company filed suit against the Company in the U.S.
District Court, District of California alleging, among other things, that New Hampshire Insurance Company overpaid the Company in
excess of $2 million dollars, on the Company’s business interruption claim arising out of the collision. The plaintiff is seeking restitution
of the sums that it has allegedly overpaid the Company, a judicial declaration of the amount, if any, that it has overpaid the Company, a
judicial declaration of the rights and duties of the parties and costs of suit. On October 4, 2002, the Company filed an answer,
counterclaim and request for jury trial setting claim, among other things, that the plaintiff's payments to the Company fall short of its
obligation by at least $1.75 million, that plaintiff breached its insurance contract, that plaintiff has acted in bad faith and seeking a judicial
determination of the respective rights and duties of the parties. The Company has also requested attorneys’ fees, costs of suit and
interest. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action, it intends to defend it vigorously and pursue its counterclaims.

Other the Company is party to a number of other pending legal proceedings, though management does not expect that the outcome of
such proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on the Company’s financial results.
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NOTE 12 —CORPORATE RELOCATION

In December, 2002, the Corporate headquarters were moved to Las Vegas, Nevada from Glendale, California. The costs to relocate,
including severance payments to employees, costs for the remaining lease term of the Glendale office lease and other moving expenses,
were $1,601,000 and were expensed in the fourth quarter of 2002.

NOTE 13 —EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Stock Options Plans

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and follows the disclosure provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. The Company has four stock option plans (the “Stock Option Plans”)
that provide for the granting of stock options to officers, key employees and consultants. The objectives of these plans include attracting
and retaining the best personnel, providing for additional performance incentives, and promoting the success of the Company. In 2002,
shareholders of the Company adopted the 2002 stock option plan, which provides for the issuance of up to 1,000,000 shares. In 2001,
1996 and 1993, shareholders of the Company adopted stock options plans for the issuance of up to 2,425,000 shares. Except for the
provisions governing the number of shares issuable and the provisions which reflect changes in tax and securities laws, the provisions of
the plans are substantially similar to one another. In addition, Boomtown, Inc. and Casino Magic Corp. had stock option plans prior to
their acquisition by the Company and under terms of each merger, the options in those companies were converted to options in

the Company.

The Stock Options Plans are administered and terms of option grants are established by the Board of Directors’ Compensation
Committee. Under the terms of the Stock Option Plans, options alone, or coupled with stock appreciation rights, may be granted to
select key employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the Company. Options become exercisable ratably over a vesting period as
determined by the Compensation Committee and expire over terms not exceeding ten years from the date of grant, and generally one to
three months after termination of employment, or one year after the death or permanent disability of the optionee. The purchase price for
all shares granted under the Stock Option Plans shall be determined by the Compensation Committee, but in the case of incentive stock
options, the price will not be less than the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant.

As of December 31, 2002, there were approximately 213,000 options remaining available for grant under the various stock option plans.

In 2002, the Company granted options for the purchase of 765,801 shares (at an exercise price of $8.45, the then-share price) to the
Chairman and CEO of the Company outside the Stock Option Plans. In 1998, the Company granted options for the purchase of 817,500
shares (625,000 at an exercise price of $10.1875, and 192,500 at an exercise price of $18.00) outside of the Stock Option Plans to a
group of executives. As of December 31, 2002, 150,000 of the options granted in 1998 outside the plans have been exercised, while
450,000 have been forfeited.

The following table summarizes information related to shares under option and shares available for grant (exclusive of the pre-merger
plans discussed below):

Number Weighted Average
of Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding at January 1, 2000. . . . ... ...ttt 1,689,343 (a) $12.08
GIANTEA .+« vt et ettt 0 $0.00
EXEIGISEO. © « o v ot e et e e e (99,127) $13.27
FOMOIEA . .« o v o ettt e e e e (17,132) $15.05
Options outstanding at December 31, 2000. . . . ... ...ttt 1,673,084 $12.13
GIANTEA . + vt et e et e e e 595,000 $9.85
EXEICISEA. « .+« o v ot e e et e e e (40,000) $9.86
FOMOIEA . . o o ot ettt e e e e e e e e (87,583) $11.96
Options outstanding at December 31,2001 . . .. ... ...ttt 2,040,501 $11.52
Granted. . ... 2,468,801 $8.08
EXEICISEA. . . . o ottt (150,000) $10.19
FOMOIEA . . o oot ettt e e e e e e e (727,534) $11.70
Options outstanding at December 31,2002 . . . ... ...ttt 3,626,768 $9.23
Options exercisable at:
December 81, 2002, . . ..ttt 1,180,300 $11.18
December 31,2001 . .. ... ... 1,326,257 $12.20
[DeeEmiseEr &y 2000 0 4 0 a0 voonaoaosnonaooosnonaooaonanocoaoaaoo 995,912 $12.23
Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year:
December 81,2001 . .. ... ..o 595,000 $5.67
December 31,2002. . ... .. ... i 2,463,801 $8.08

(a) Includes options for the purchase of shares issued outside of the Stock Option Plans.

The following table summarizes information about stock options (exclusive of the pre-merger plans discussed below):

OQUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE

Number Number Weighted Average
of Shares at Weighted Average of Shares at Range of
Exercise Exercise Price Exercise 12/31/02 Price
$5.95-$10.19 . . 3,010,267 $8.40 721,798 $9.32
$10.65-$14.75 . 539,001 $12.55 381,002 $17.94
$14.81-$20.25 . 77,500 $18.29 77,500 $28.16
3,626,768 $9.23 1,180,300 $11.18

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the outstanding options (exclusive of the pre-merger plans discussed below) as of
December 31, 2002 is approximately 8.26 years.

In addition to the above options to purchase shares, 250,380 shares (all of which are vested and have a weighted average exercise price
of $10.01 per share) of Pinnacle Entertainment common stock are issuable upon exercise of options granted under pre-merger stock
option plans of Boomtown and 76,305 shares (all of which are vested and have a weighted average exercise price of $28.11 per share)
of Pinnacle Entertainment common stock are issuable upon exercise of options granted under pre-merger stock options plans of Casino
Magic. Options issued under these plans expire over remaining terms not exceeding 5.5 years.
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Boomtown Casino Magic
Pre-Merger Pre-Merger
Options Options
Options outstanding at January 1, 2000. . . . ...... ..ttt 721,074 256,124
Granted. . .. ... 0 0
EXErCiSed. . . o oo (59,064) (38,184)
Cancelled . . ... (4,790) (40,811)
Options outstanding at December 31,2000 . . . . ... ..ottt 657,220 177,129
[€EMEE)n a0 0a0a000naba000000a0000a00000000000060000000000040 0 0
EXEIGISEU. .« v ottt e e e (72,090) (352)
Cancelled . . ... 0 (2,464)
Options outstanding at December 31,2001 . . . . ... ... .ottt 585,130 174,313
[€ETMEe)n a0 0a0a0000ab0000000a0000a00000000000060000000000000 0 0
EXErCiSed. . . oo (331,313) (9,504)
Cancelled . ... (3,437) (88,504)
Options outstanding at December 31,2002 . . . ... ...ttt 250,380 76,305

Executive Compensation

Non-cash compensation charges of $177,000 for 2002 and $414,000 for each of 2001 and 2000 were incurred in connection with the
granting of stock options to certain executives outside the Stock Option Plans in 2002 and 1998. As the options granted outside the
plans were subject to shareholder approval, a compensation charge equal to the difference between the stock option exercise price and
the share price on date of shareholder approval is calculated and expensed ratably over the shorter of (i) the life of the employee’s service
agreement or (i) the stock option agreement. Charges related to the 1998 option grants concluded in 2001, while the charges related to
the 2002 grants will continue through 2006.

Other Benefit Plans

The Company maintains the Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 401(k) Investment Plan, as amended and restated, (the “401(k) Plan”). The
401(k) Plan is an employee benefit plan subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended
(“ERISA”), and is intended to be a qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
Employees of the Company who complete 500 Hours of Service within a 12 month period are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan;
except that employees who are (i) neither citizens nor a residents of the United States and who derive no earned income from the
Company, (ii) covered by a collective bargaining agreement, or (jii) individuals whom the Company previously classified as an independent
contractor but whom the Internal Revenue Service later determines is a common-law employee are not eligible to participate in the 401(k)
Plan. Participants of the 401(k) Plan may contribute up to 100% of pretax income, subject to the legal limitation of $12,000 for 2003.

In addition, effective January 1, 2003, participants who are age 50 or older may make an additional contribution to the 401(k) Plan,
commonly referred to as a catch-up contribution, equal to $2,000 for 2003. The Company offers discretionary matching contributions
under the 401(k) Plan, which vest ratably over 5 years. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, matching contributions
to the 401(k) Plan totaled $1,058,000, $567,000 and $1,027,000, respectively.

On January 1, 2000, the Company established a nonqualified Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Deferred Plan”) to permit
certain key employees to defer receipt of current compensation in order to provide retirement benefits on behalf of such employees.
The Company does not make matching contributions to the Deferred Plan. The Deferred Plan is not qualified under Section 401(a) of
the Code. Participants in the Deferred Plan are general creditors of the Company. The Company has the right to amend, modify or
terminate the Deferred Plan.

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. Executive Health Expense Plan (the “Executive Health
Plan”), an employee welfare benefit plan subject to the provisions of ERISA. The Executive Health Plan reimburses eligible employees,
including officers, Directors and their dependents, for their medical, dental and vision expenses, subject to certain exclusions, benefit
maximums and benefit limitations. There are approximately 27 participants, plus their dependents, in the Executive Health Plan.

NOTE 14 —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2002, the Company’s current Chairman was reimbursed $9,000 for business use of an aircraft he owns. In 2001 and 2000, the
Company’s then-Chairman received reimbursement for the business use of aircraft he owns in the amount of $55,000 and $97,000,
respectively.

Timothy J. Parrott (a director and member of the Executive Committee, and, from late 2000 to early 2003, a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors) purchased Boomtown common stock in 1988 in connection with the acquisition of
Boomtown Hotel & Casino, Inc. (Boomtown). In 1997, with the acquisition of Boomtown by the Company, these shares were exchanged
for 162,027 of the Company’s shares. Mr. Parrott paid an aggregate purchase price for the common stock of $222,000, of which $1,000
was paid in cash and $221,000 was paid by a promissory note. In 1998, Mr. Parrott resigned his position as Chairman of Boomtown,
and the Company retained him for a three-year period, as a consultant to provide services relating to gaming and other business issues
for an annual retainer of $350,000 with health and disability benefits equivalent to those he received as Chairman of Boomtown. Mr.
Parrott’s $221,000 note was also forgiven in three equal parts on each anniversary of the consulting agreement.

Marlin Torguson, who beneficially owned approximately 21.5% of the outstanding common shares of Casino Magic in 1998, agreed, in
connection with the Casino Magic acquisition, to vote his Casino Magic shares in favor of the acquisition by the Company. In addition,
Mr. Torguson agreed to continue to serve as an employee of Casino Magic for three years following the acquisition, and during such
three year period, not to compete with the Company or Casino Magic in any jurisdiction in which either the Company or Casino Magic
operates. The Company appointed Mr. Torguson to its Board of Directors. The Company issued to Mr. Torguson 60,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock as compensation for his three-year service as an employee and paid him $300,000 for each year for his
non-compete agreement. In addition, the Company issued Mr. Torguson options to acquire 30,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock, priced at the closing price of the Company’s common stock on that date.

NOTE 15 —TERMINATED MERGER AGREEMENT

In April 2000, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with a subsidiary of Harveys Casino Resorts (“PHCR”), pursuant to which
PHCR would have acquired by merger all of the outstanding capital stock of Pinnacle Entertainment for cash consideration.
Consummation of the merger was subject to numerous conditions. In January 2001, upon mutual agreement, the proposed merger was
terminated. During 2000, the Company incurred total merger related costs of $5,727,000. During 2001, $464,000 of previously recorded
reserves were reversed.

NOTE 16 —CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The Company’s subsidiaries (excluding Casino Magic Argentina and certain non-material subsidiaries) have fully and unconditionally
guaranteed the payment of all obligations under the 9.25% Notes and the 9.5% Notes. Separate financial statements and other
disclosures regarding the subsidiary guarantors are not included herein because management has determined that such information
is not material to investors. In lieu thereof, the Company includes the following:
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Pinnacle

Entertainment,

Wholly Owned
Guarantor

Wholly Owned
Non- Guarantor

Consolidating

and

Eliminating

Pinnacle
Entertainment, Inc.

Consolidating

(in thousands) Inc. Subsidiaries (a) Subsidiaries (b) Entries Consolidated
As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2002
Balance Sheet
Current assets . .. ... .ovoi e $101,865 $67,116 $4,024 $0 $173,005
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . 22,850 562,233 1,000 0 586,083
Other non-current assets .......... 38,779 29,642 2,078 10,851 81,350
Investment in subsidiaries . . . ... .. .. 512,877 927) 0 (511,950) 0
Inter-company .. ....... .. 171,028 52,159 0 (228,187) 0
$847,399 $710,223 $7,102 $(724,286) $840,438
Current liabilities . . .. ............. $37,652 $48,142 $2,092 $0 $87,886
Notes payable, longterm . ......... 489,846 1,233 0 0 491,079
Other non-current liabilities . . . ... ... 25,193 0 0 (12,206) 12,987
Inter-company .. ... . 46,222 171,028 5,937 (223,187) 0
EQUIY « o veveee e oo 248,486 489,820 (927) (488,893) 248,486
$847,399 $710,223 $7,102 $(724,286) $840,438
Statement of Operations
Revenues:
Gaming. .. ................ $0 $425,850 $6,493 $0 $432,343
Food and beverage . . .. ...... 0 29,249 502 0 29,751
Equity in subsidiaries . . .. ... .. 16,716 1,005 0 (17,721) 0
Other .................... 6,000 45,863 44 0 51,907
$22,716 $501,967 $7,039 $(17,721) $514,001
Expenses:
Gaming. . ............ ... 0 249,993 2,558 0 252,551
Food and beverage . . .. ...... 0 33,537 497 0 34,034
Administrative and other. . ... .. 22,979 129,516 1,581 0 154,076
Depreciation and amortization . . 2,378 42,065 486 0 44,929
25,357 455,111 5,122 0 485,590
Operating income (loss) . .......... (2,641) 46,856 1,917 (17,721) 28,411
Interest expense (income), net. . . .. .. 48,171 (679) (10) 0 47,482
Income (loss) before inter-company
activity, taxes and change in
accounting principle . . .. ........ .. (50,812) 47,535 1,927 (17,721) (19,071)
Management fee & inter-company
interest expense (income) .. ........ (19,046) 19,046 0 0 0
Income tax (benefit) expense. . . ... .. (7,068) 0 922 0 (6,146)
Income (loss) before change in
accounting principle . . . ........... (24,698) 28,489 1,005 (17,721) (12,925)
Change in accounting principle,
netoftaxes .................... 44,931 11,773 0 0 56,704
Net income (10SS) . . .« .o vvvn. .. $(69,629) $16,716 $1,005 $(17,721) $(69,629)
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Pinnacle Wholly Owned Wholly Owned and Pinnacle
Entertainment, Guarantor Non- Guarantor Eliminating Entertainment, Inc.
(in thousands) Inc. Subsidiaries (a) Subsidiaries (b) Entries Consolidated
For the year ended
December 31, 2002
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities . . ... ... ... ... $(4,413) $43,461 $(18) $0 $39,030
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities. . . . ............ (33,661) (43,186) 107 0 (76,740)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities. . . . ............ 1,751 (925) 0 0 826
Effect of exchange rate
changesoncash ................ 0 0 (2,017) 0 (2,017)
As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001
Balance Sheet
Current assets . . ..o $140,407 $70,992 $7,425 $0 $218,824
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . 21,753 552,633 1,918 0 576,299
Other non-current assets .. ........ 20,796 57,631 4,949 40,850 124,226
Investment in subsidiaries . . . .. ... .. 542,202 5,280 0 (647,482) 0
Inter-company . ................. 156,082 20,360 0 (176,442) 0
$881,240 $706,896 $14,287 $(683,074) $919,349
Current liabilites . .. .............. $34,816 $46,223 $2,615 $0 $83,654
Notes payable, longterm ... ....... 492,016 1,477 0 0 493,493
Other non-current liabilities . . . ... ... 34,892 0 0 (12,206) 22,686
Inter-company . ................. 0 170,050 6,392 (176,442) 0
Equity ... ..o 319,516 489,146 5,280 (494,426) 319,516
$881,240 $706,896 $14,287 $(683,074) $919,349
Statement of Operations
Revenues:
Gaming . ... ..o $0 $402,889 $18,602 $0 $421,491
Food and beverage . ............. 0 29,524 1,428 0 30,952
Equity in subsidiaries . ............ (16,308) 4,622 0 11,686 0
Other ... ... .. i 6,000 49,471 129 0 55,600
(10,308) 486,506 20,159 11,686 508,043
Expenses:
Gaming . ... oo 0 233,991 4,984 0 238,975
Food and beverage . ............. 0 37,665 1,134 0 38,799
Administrative and other. . . ... ... .. 15,119 141,421 6,972 0 163,512
Asset impairment write down . ... ... 0 23,030 0 0 23,030
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . .. 2,684 44,203 1,447 1,116 49,450
17,803 480,310 14,537 1,116 513,766
Operating (loss) income .. ......... (28,111) 6,196 5,622 10,570 (5,723)
Interest expense (income), net. . ... .. 46,129 (984) (813) 0 44,832
(Loss) income before inter-company
activity and income taxes . ... ...... (74,240) 7,180 5,935 10,570 (50,555)
Management fee & inter-company
interest expense (income) .. ........ (23,488) 23,488 0 0 0
Income tax (benefit) expense. . . ... .. (23,219) 0 1,313 0 (21,906)
Net (loss)income ... ............. $(27,533) $(16,308) $4,622 $10,570 $(28,649)
Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities . ... .. ... . ... .. $(11,862) $48,297 $1,966 $1,116 $39,517
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities. . .. ............ (264) (41,461) (5,031) 0 (46,756)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities. . . . ........ ... (11,591) (851) 0 0 (12,442)
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Consolidating

D NOTE 17 —SEGMENT INFORMATION

Pinnacle Wholly Owned Wholly Owned and Pinnacle . X - . X . . . .
Entertainment, CUEFERIGF NeR- Cuaramier Eliminating Entertainment, Inc. The following table reconciles the Company’s segment activity to its consolidated results of operations and financial position as

(in thousands) Inc. Subsidiaries (a) Subsidiaries (b) Entries Consolidated of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
For the year ended December 31, 2000
Statement of Operations
Revenues:
GAMING .+ v oo $0 $427,980 $20,398 $0 $448,378 For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Food and beverage . ............. 1,056 29,300 1,564 0 31,920 Revenues and Expenses
RAGING. « o v o e e e 9,452 0 0 0 9,452 Boomtown New Orleans
Equity in subsidiaries . ... ......... 63,703 5150 0 (68,853) 0 REVENUBS. . o oottt $100,403 $99,927 $94,240
OtEr oo 6,157 53,565 130 0 59,852 Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset

impairment write-down . . ... ... 73,348 72,362 67,548

80,368 515,995 22,092 (68,853) 549,602 - .

Depreciation and amortization. . .. ......... .. ... ... ... 6,585 6,012 5,843
Expenses:

Asset impairment write-down . . ... ... 0 1,801 0
Gaming . ... .o 0 239,042 5,781 0 244,823

Net operating income—Boomtown New Orleans . . ... ....... $20,470 $19,752 $20,849
Food and beverage .. ............ 892 32,952 1,336 0 35,180

Casino Magic Biloxi
Racing.......... ... ... ... ..... 4,133 0 0 0 4,133

REVENUES. .« « . o ottt e $86,500 $82,997 $86,451
Administrative and other. . .. ....... 24,351 135,928 5,997 0 166,276

Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and asset
(Gain) loss on disposition of assets . . . (119,718) 902 0 0 (118,816) impairment write-down . .. .. ... 68,410 67,029 68,976
Depreciation and amortization. . .. . .. 3,336 39,798 1,573 1,395 46,102 Depreciation and amortization . . .. ...................... 7,520 6,799 6,963

(87,006) 448,622 14,687 1,395 377,698 Asset impairment Write-down . . ... ... 518 1,371 0

Operating income (l0ss) .. ......... 167,374 67,373 7,405 (70,248) 171,904 Net operating income—Casino Magic Biloxi. . . . ............ $10,052 $7,798 $10,512
Interest expense (income), net. . ... .. 39,279 1,017 (280) 0 40,016 Boomtown Reno
Income (loss) before taxes and REVENUES .« « . ottt e e e $89,021 $90,100 $93,183
extraordinary item. . ... ... ... 128,095 66,356 7,685 (70,248) 131,888

Expenses, excluding depreciation, and amortization. . ........ 71,428 70,916 73,778
Income tax expense . . .. .......... 49,861 0 2,635 0 52,396

Depreciation and amortization. . . ............ ... . ... ... 7,390 7,834 7,683
Income (loss) before o
extraordinary item. . ... 78,234 66,356 5,150 (70,248) 79,492 Net operating income—Boomtown Reno. . ................ $10,208 $11,350 $11,722
Extraordinary item, net of taxes . . . . . . 0 2,653 0 0 2,653 Boomtown Bossier City
Net income (|OSS) ________________ $78,234 $63,703 $5’1 50 $(70,248) $76,839 REVENUES. . . . . . $1 02,680 $1 01 ,01 9 $1 24,308
Statement of Cash Flows Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization and

asset impairment write-down . ... ... L 89,717 91,622 89,927
Net cash provided by (used in) L o
operating activities . . . .. .......... $(337,197) $303,312 $3,757 $1,304 $(28,824) Depreciation and amortization .. ... 7,395 8,410 8,428
Net cash provided by (used in) Asset impairment write-down . .. ... 2,235 0 0
investing activities. . .............. 388,466 (194,008) (1.181) 0 193,277 Net operating income—Boomtown Bossier City . . . .. ........ $3,333 $987 $25,953
Net CZ?Sh prolvi'dled by (used in) Belterra Casino Resort
financing activities. . . .. ........... (5,119) (109,828) 0 0 (114,947)

REVENUES. . . ..o $122,118 $104,385 $15,506

Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization . ......... 106,327 110,160 34,713

Depreciation and amortization . . . .. .............. . ... ... 13,175 12,898 2,294

(a) The following subsidiaries are treated as guarantors of both the 9.5% Notes and 9.25% Notes: Belterra Resort Indiana LLC, Boomtown, Inc., Boomtown Hotel & Casino, Inc., Louisiana—I Gaming,
Net operating income (loss)—Belterra Casino Resort . ... ..... $2,616 $(18,673) $(21,501)

Louisiana Gaming Enterprises, Inc., Casino Magic Corp., Biloxi Casino Corp., PNK (Bossier City), Inc., Casino One Corporation, Casino Parking, Inc., St. Louis Casino Corp., HP/Compton, Inc. and Crystal

Park Hotel and Casino Development Company, LLC. (b) The Company’s only material non-guarantor of both the 9.5% Notes and the 9.25% Notes is Casino Magic Neuquen S.A. and its subsidiary Casino
Magic Support Services.
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For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Casino Magic Argentina EBITDA (a)

REVENUES. .« o v o et $7,039 $20,159 $22,092 Boomtown New Orleans . . .. .. oo v e $27,055 $27,565 $26,692
Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization .. ........ 5,097 13,090 13,114 Casino Magic Biloxi .. .......... ... ... i 18,090 15,968 17,475
Depreciation and amortization. . ... ......... ... .. 486 1,447 1,573 BoomtownReno ............. ... ... 17,598 19,184 19,405
Net operating income—Casino Magic Argentina. . . ... ....... $1,456 $5,622 $7,405 Boomtown Boessier City: ..o 12,963 9,397 34,381
Card Clubs Belterra Casino Resort . .. .. ..o 15,791 (5,775) (19,207)
REVENUES. . . . $6,240 $6,960 $7,200 Casino Magic Argentina . . .. ... 1,942 7,069 8,978
Expenses, excluding depreciation, amortization Card Clubs. . . ..o 5,902 6,622 6,441
and asset impairment Wte-down ... +.ceveeee e 938 938 759 COrpOrate and Oter (@). « .+« v v ovee e (26,001) (39,371) 23,079)
Depreciation and amortization. . . .......... ... ... ....... 2,280 3,767 3,937 73,340 40,659 71,002
Asset impairment write-down . .. ... .. 0 20,358 0 SIS FGISERES () « 0 0o e o oeomonoeneonsnnenneneennnn: 0 3,068 146,914
Net operating income (loss)—Card Clubs. . . .. ............. $3,622 $(17,508) $2,504 $73.340 $43.707 $218,006

Sold Properties

[REMERZS0 0 00 0000000000000000000000000000300003000 $0 $2,496 $106,622 (a) The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before net interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation, amortization, cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and extraordinary
items. Corporate and other EBITDA includes corporate overhead and asset write-down and impairment charges. Certain costs that the Company believes are likely to be non-recurring have nevertheless

Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization .. ........ 0 (572) (40,292) been deducted to calculate EBITDA. Sold property EBITDA includes the asset sale gains. EBITDA is presented because it is used as a performance measure to analyze the performance of the
Depreciation and amortization. ... ...................... 0 0 5,590 Company’s business segments. Additionally, the Company believes some investors consider EBITDA to be a useful measure in determining a company’s ability to service or incur indebtedness
o . and for estimating a company’s underlying cash flow from operations before capital costs, taxes and capital expenditures. EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under the promulgations
Net operating income—Sold Properties . . . ................ $0 $3,068 $141,324 of the accounting profession known as “generally accepted accounting principles” or “GAAP.” The following table is a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA:
Total Reportable Segments
REVENUBS. - .+ e e o e e e e $514,001 $508,043 $549,602 For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization ... ....... 414,660 424,945 308,523 Net (loss) income $(69,629) $(28,649) 876,839
Depreciation and amorization - . . . . .« .+ + v oo 44,831 47,167 42,311 ﬁz;”n‘ft';: ;2‘;";2? in accounting principle, net of 56,704 o 0
Asset impairment write-down .. .. .. ... oL 2,753 23,580 0 ) ) ) )
impar wi W Extraordinary item, net of income tax benefit . .............. 0 0 2,653
Net operating income—Total Reportable Segments ... ..... .. $51,757 $12,401 $198,768 (Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting
Reconciliation to Consolidated Net Income principle and extraordinary item. . ........ .. . L (12,925) (28,649) 79,492
Total net operating income for reportable segments . ... ... ... $51,757 $12,401 $198,768 Income tax (benefit) expense. .. ... (6,146) (21,906) 52,396
Unallocated income and expenses (Loss) income before cumulative change in accounting
principle, extraordinary item and income taxes . . ............ (19,071) (50,555) 131,888
Corporate eXPENSe. . . ..ot vt 23,346 18,124 26,864
) Interest expense, net of capitalized interest
Interestincome. . ... ... (2,206) (5,021) (12,604) and Nterest INCOME .« « v v v o e, 47,482 44,832 40,016
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest . ............... 49,688 49,853 52,620 Operating income (I08s). . .. ... 28,411 (5,723) 171,904
(Loss) income before income taxes and Depreciation and amortization . . .. ...................... 44,929 49,450 46,102
extraordinary item. ... ... (19,071) (50,555) 131,888
EBITDA .. $73,340 $43,727 $218,006
Income tax (benefit) expense. ... ... ... (6,146) (21,9086) 52,396
(Loss) income before extraordinary item. ... ........ . .. ... (12,925) (28,649) 79,492
Cumulative change in accounting principle, net of taxes . . . . . .. 56,704 0 0 For the years ended December 31, (in thousands) ooz 210007 2800
Extraordinary item, net income tax benefit . . . .............. 0 0 2,653 il [BpemeliveEs
N (B ITETE o o o 2o 0 e e 0 mos e omoseonencnnnsennnenn: $(69,629) $(28,649) $76,839 Boomtown New Orleans. . . .. ..o $4,657 $14,018 $3,752
Casino Magic BiloxXi . ... ... 3,888 7,857 4,663
Boomtown Bossier City .. ............. i 26,610 8,941 1,131
Belterra CasinoResort . .. ........... ... .. .. .. ... ... 4,732 11,573 192,157
Boomtown Reno . .......... ... .. 4,958 4,617 5,588
Casino Magic Argentina . .. .. ... 190 1,585 1,181
Card Clubs. . . .o 0 3,407 57
Sold Properties. . . ... . 0 0 4,356
Lake Charles .. ...t 3,151 0 0
COrPOrate. « . v vttt 410 266 (10,110)

Total Reportable Segments and Corporate. . ... ............ $48,596 $52,264 $202,775




PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC. QUARTERLY INFORMATION AND SUPPLEMENTARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

December 31, (in thousands) ., — The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Total Assets

Boomtown New OFl€aNS . .. ..ottt ettt $82,010 $85,632
2002 (in thousands, except per share data) Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
Casino Magic BiloXi . . . ..ot 103,814 109,053
REVENUES . . .. oottt $125,015 $139,405 $126,076 $123,505
Boomtown Bossier City . .. .. ...t 133,822 129,127
Loss on asset impairment/disposition, net . . ... ... 2,753 0 0 0
Belterra Casino Resort. . . ... i 221,979 226,228
Operating income . . .. ..o 1,423 15,545 3,035 8,408
[EXS@MMERM [REM® 0 0 00 o0an00000000000000006006000606000006060a0000000 90,159 91,479
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . 0 0 0 56,704
Casino Magic Argentina. . . .. ...ttt 7,102 20,417
NEEINCOME. « v o oo e $(6,693) $2,481 $(6,415) $(59,002)
Card Clubs. . . . ... 6,100 29,988
Per Share Data
Sold Properties . . . .. ...ttt e 0 0
Net (loss) income per share—basic . .. .......... $(0.26) $0.10 $(0.25) $(2.32)
{070 oo =1 (= 195,452 227,425
Net (loss) income per share—diluted @) . .. ....... $(0.26) $0.09 $(0.25) $(2.32)
Total Reportable Segments and Corporate. . .. ...........uiviuunnennn.. $840,438 $919,349
2001 (in thousands, except per share data) Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
Revenues............. . ... ... ... ... ... $119,773 $134,681 $126,377 $127,212
D NOTE 18 _SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Loss (gain) on asset impairment/disposition, net. . . . 23,530 81 (581) 0
Pre-opening costs, Belterra Casino Resort. . ... ... 0 0 412 198
Proposed Credit Facility )
. o . . ) Terminated merger .. ... 0 0 (464) 0
On March 2, 2003, two major banks agreed to lead syndication efforts for a $225,000,000 bank credit facility, comprised of a o |
. « . - . . erating (loss) income. . . ............. .. ... 22,879, 7,390 2,621 7,145
$100,000,000 reducing revolver and a $125,000,000 term loan (the “Proposed Credit Facility”). The facility would mature in August perating (oss) (e25879)
2006, which maturity date can be extended under certain circumstances. The facility would amend and restate the existing Net (loss) income ..............ooovvinne, $(22,244) $1,003 $(5,287) $(2,121)
$110,000,000 bank credit facility. The Proposed Credit Facility would be used to finance the construction and opening of the Per Share Data:
Lake Charles casino resort, the 300-guestroom tower expansion at Belterra Casino Resort and general corporate purposes. Net (loss) income per share-basic and diluted (a) . . . $(0.87) $0.04 $(0.20) $(0.08)

Availability under the Proposed Credit Facility would be significantly limited until the Company has deposited $40,000,000 of

minimum cash proceeds from asset sales or equity capital raising efforts into a completion reserve account. The Company expects

that the source of these cash proceeds will be the two pending sales (aggregating $58,000,000) of unimproved land adjacent to the

HO”yWOOd Park Race Track. Among other alternatives, the Company could sell some or all of its SUFD|US land in Reno, St. Louis or (a) Net (loss) income per share calculations for each quarter are based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the respective periods; accordingly, the sum of the
elsewhere, although the Company cannot ensure that it will be able to do so on a timely basis or on favorable terms. Under terms of quarters may not equal the full year (loss) income per share.

the Proposed Credit Facility, in the event that such $40,000,000 in cash proceeds is not deposited by March 31, 2004, the unfunded Below are the material unusual and infrequent occurring items that impacted the 2002 and 2001 quarterly financial results:
* Effective January 1, 2002 the Company implemented SFAS No. 142 resulting in an impairment charge of $56,704,000 relating to its Goodwill and intangible gaming license and no longer

revolving credit commitment would be cancelled and the facility would mature on June 30, 2004. In addition, the Proposed Credit )
amortizes goodwill (see Note 2).

Facﬂlty will have, among other thlth, customary financial covenants and Capltal spendlng restrictions, be secured by all the assets of * In June 2002, the Company recorded a $6,493,000 charge for estimated regulatory, legal, investigation, severance and other costs related to a settlement reached with The Indiana
the Company (other than the Argentine subsidiaries) and require the Company to demonstrate sufficient liquidity to complete the Lake Gaming Commission. An additional costs of $83,000 and $33,000 in the third and fourth quarters of 2002 respectively (see Note 11).
Charles project. Finally, interest rates on borrowings under the Proposed Credit Facility will be based on customary financial ratios tied * In December 2002, the Corporate headquarters were moved to Las Vegas, Nevada from Glendale, California and the costs related to such move including severance, future lease

) - . L . e A e payments for the vacated offices and moving expenses were $1,601,000 (see Note 12).
to the LIBOR or the Prime Rate. The Company anticipates finalizing the Proposed Credit Facility in April. However, the new facility is , _ _ o . . IR
© In December 2001, the Company wrote down certain assets, including a card club in Compton, California, a riverboat casino in Harvey, Louisiana and a breakwater reef in Biloxi,

subject to negotiation and execution of definitive documentation, among other conditions. There can be no assurance the Company Mississippi, and accordingly recorded asset impairment charges of $23,530,000 (see Note 6).

will finalize the Proposed Credit Facility under terms and conditions acceptable to the Company. « In June 2001, the Company received an early pay-off of the promissory note related to the HP Yakama operations and payment for the early termination of the Master Lease and Sublease,
and after deducting for cash participation receivables through June 30, 2001, and certain closing costs, the Company’s pre-tax gain from the transaction was approximately $639,000

Contract Submission (see Note 7).

 In June 2001, the Company opened the championship golf course at Belterra Casino Resort, and in October 2000, the Company opened the Belterra Casino Resort. Pre-opening costs
. . . associated with the completion of the golf course in 2001 and the development and construction of the resort in 2000 were $610,000 and $15,030,000 for the years ended December 31,
project to the Louisiana Gaming Control Board. (See Note 5). 2001 and 2000, respectively.

On March 19, 2003, the Company submitted for consideration the significant design and construction contracts for the Lake Charles

Employment Contracts

On March 14, 2003, the Company entered into employment agreements with thirteen officers and employees, which contracts range
between two to four years. Such group did not include the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating
Officer and General Counsel, who are already parties to employment agreements with the Company (see Note 11). The agreements
grant the employee the right to receive their annual salary for up to the balance of the employment agreement, plus extension of certain
benefits and the immediate vesting of stock options, if the employee terminates his or her employment for good reason or the Company
terminates the employee without cause (both as defined in the respective agreements). In the event of a Severance Trigger following a
change in control (as defined in the agreements), the employee (j) is entitled to a lump sum payment equal to two times the largest
annual salary and incentive compensation that was paid to the employee during the two years preceding the change in control, (i) the
extension of certain benefits for one year after termination, and (jii) the immediate vesting of the employee’s stock options. The aggregate
amount to be paid to this group of employees in the event of a change in control and subsequent Severance Trigger is

approximately $5,238,000.
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MARKET INFORMATION

The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the name Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.,
identified by the symbol “PNK”. Prior to February 28, 2000, the Company’s common stock was traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the name Hollywood Park, Inc., identified by the symbol “HPK”.

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per common share of the Company’s common stock on the New York
Stock Exchange.

Price Range High Low
2002

Fourth QUAaNET . . . .. oottt et e e e $7.70 $5.22
Third Quarter . .. ... 10.91 6.89
Second QUAaMer . .. ... ... 12.36 6.48
First Quarter. . . ... ... 8.50 5.02
2001

FourthQuarter. ... ... ... ... ... i $7.23 $5.50
Third Quarter . . .. ... e 8.99 5.95
EEeEme] @UERE P ana0an0a0an0cn00an00000a0000000000000600a000000000 10.60 7.35
FirstQuarter. . . ... ... ... i 13.81 9.70

As of March 24, 2003, there were 2,846 stockholders of record of the Company’s common stock.

Dividends

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2002 or 2001. The Company’s 9.25% Notes, 9.5% Notes and existing credit facility limit the
amount of dividends that the Company is permitted to pay. The Board of Directors does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on the
Company’s common stock in the foreseeable future, as its financial resources are being reinvested into its business.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

On June 17, 2002, the Company engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP to act as the Company'’s independent auditors. Deloitte replaced
Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”), which the Company dismissed on May 28, 2002. The Audit Committee participated in and approved
the decision to dismiss Andersen. The reports of Andersen on the financial statements of the Company for the two fiscal years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001 contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty,
audit scope or accounting principles. During the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 and through May 28, 2002, there
were no disagreements between the Company and Andersen on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Andersen, would have caused
Andersen to make reference to the subject matter thereof in its report on the Company’s financial statements for such periods. During
the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 and through May 28, 2002, there were no reportable events (as defined in ltem
304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).

During 2000 and 2001 and the subsequent interim period prior to engaging Deloitte, the Company did not consult with Deloitte regarding
(i) the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, (i) the type of audit opinion that might
be rendered on the Company’s financial statements, or (i) any subject matter of a disagreement or reportable event with the Company’s
former auditors.

CORPORATE

INFORMATION

B OARD O F DIRECTORS

Pictured left to right Timothy Parrott® - CEO, On-Stage Entertainment (Entertainment Production Company)
Michael Ornest® - Private Investor John Giovenco® - Retired Gaming Executive Daniel R. Lee® - Chairman of the Board Bonnie Reiss® - CEO, Inner City Games Foundation (Non-Profit Organization)

Marlin Torguson - Private Investor Bruce Leslie - Attorney, Leslie & Campbell

Lynn Reitnouer®® - Partner, Crowell Weedon & Co. (Stock Brokerage Firm) James Martineau® - Private Investor

(a) Executive Committee (b) Aucit Committee  (c) Compensation Committee

OFFICERS

Daniel R. Lee
Chief Executive Officer

Stephen H. Capp
Executive VP, Chief Financial Officer

Wade W. Hundley
Executive VP, Chief Operating Officer

Jack A. Godfrey
Sr. VP, Secretary & General Counsel

Jim Barich
Sr. VP, Public Affairs

Art Goldberg
Sr. VP, Risk Management & Benefits

Cliff Kortman
Sr. VP, Construction & Development

Dale Dodd
VP, Corporate Information Technologies

Chris Plant
VP, Corporate Controller & Treasurer

Kim Townsend
VP, Marketing

ANNUAL MEETING
OF STOCKHOLDERS

Tuesday, June 3, 2003 at 10:00 am
The Four Seasons Hotel

3960 Las Vegas Boulevard South
Las Vegas, NV 89119
702.632.5000

TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

American Stock Transfer, Inc.
59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038
800.937.5449
www.amstock.com

TRUSTEE OF SENIOR
SUBORDINATED NOTES
The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286

ANNUAL REPORT
ON FORM 10-K

A copy of the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, will be
furnished without charge to any
stockholder upon written request to:

Investor Relations

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, NV 89109

CORPORATE OFFICES

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Las Vegas, NV 89109

702.784.7777

866.765.4263
www.pinnacle-entertainment-inc.com

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP
3773 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, NV 89109

PROPERTIES

Belterra Casino Resort
777 Belterra Drive
Florence, IN 47020
812.427.7777
www.belterracasino.com

Boomtown Bossier

300 Riverside Drive

Bossier City, LA 71111
318.746.0711
www.boomtownbossier.com

Boomtown New Orleans

4132 Peters Road

Harvey, LA 70058

504.366.7711
www.boomtownneworleans.com

Boomtown Reno

1-80 Boomtown @ Garson Road
Verdi, NV 89439

775.345.6000
www.boomtownreno.com

Casino Magic Biloxi

195 Beach Boulevard

Biloxi, MS 39530
228.386.4600
www.casinomagic-biloxi.com

Casino Magic Neuquen
25 De Mayo 180
Neuguen, Argentina 8300
011.54.299.447.0996

Casino Magic San Martin

Villegas y Eldori

San Martin de los Andes, Argentina 8310
011.54.297.242.7142

Crystal Park Casino Hotel
123 East Artesia Boulevard
Compton, CA 90220
310.631.3838
www.crystalparkcasino.com

Hollywood Park-Casino

3883 W. Century Blvd.
Inglewood, CA 90303
310.330.2800
www.hollywoodpark-casino.com

SECURITIES INFORMATION
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. stock trades
on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol PNK.

LEGAL COUNCIL
Irell & Manella LLP

1800 Avenue of the Stars
Los Angeles, CA 90067




